
Financiai Statements 

Town of Lutcher 

April 30, 2022 

P&N 
Postlethwaite & Netterville 



TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher. Louisiana 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

APRIL 30, 2022 



TULF OI COT1:TS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 

Independent Auditors Report 

REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Managements Discussion and Analysis 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS): 

Statcmcnt ofNet Position 

Statement of Activities 

Fund Financial Statcrncnts (FFS): 

Governmental Funds: 

Balance Sheet 

Page No. 

1-3 

4- 10 

11 

12 

13 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the 14 
Statement ofNet Position 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 15 

Reconciliation ofthe Governmental Funds - Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures, 16 
and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement ofActivities 

Proprietary Funds: 

Statement ofNet Position 17 

Statement ofRevenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 18 

Statement ofCash Flows 19 - 20 

Notes to Financial Statements 2 1 - 44 

REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION — PART 11 

Schedule of the Town of Lutchers Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
for the Retirement Systems 45 

Schedule ofContributions to Each Retirement System (Defined Benefit Cost Sharing 
Plans On1y) 46 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 47 - 48 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule: 

General Fund 49 - 51 

OTHER REPORTS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Independent Auditors Report on Interna1 Control Over Financial Reporting and 
on Compliance and Other IVIatters Based on an Audit of FinanciaI 
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 52 - 53 

Schedule of Findings and Recomnìendations 54 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 55 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Schedule of Principal Officials and Salaries 56 

Schedule of Compensation, Beneflts and Other Payments to Agency Head or 
Chief Executive Officer 57 

Justice System Funding Schedule — Collecting/Disbursing Entity as Required by 58 
Act 87 of2020 Regular Session — Cash Basis Presentation 

OTHER INFORMATION 

Insurance-in-Force (without audit) 59 

Public Utility System Operations (without audit) 60 - 6 1 



Post[ethwaite & Nettervifle 

225-473-41 
215 Saint Patrick St. — Donaldsonville, LA 70346 
79 Phone — 225-473-7204 Fax — pncpa.com 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 

INDEPENDENT AUIMTORS REPORT 

To thc Honorablc Mayor and Mcmbcrs 
ofthc Board ofAldcnncn 

Town of Lutchcr, Louisiana 

Report on the Atidit of Financial Staternents 

Opiiiioiis 

Wc havc auditcd thc accompanying fmancial statcmcnts of thc govcrnmcntal activitics, thc busincss-typc activitics, 
cach major fund, and thc aggrcgatc rcmaining fund information of thc Town of Lutchcr, Louisiana, (thc Town) as of 
and for thc ycar cndcd April 30, 2022, and thc rclatcd notcs to thc financial statcmcnts, which collcctivcly coinprisc thc 
Towns basic financial statcmcnts as listcd in thc tablc of contcnts. 

In our opinion, thc financial statcmcnts rcfcrrcd to abovc prcscnt fairly, in all matcrial rcspccts, thc rcspcctivc financial 
position ofthc govcrnmcntal activitics, thc busincss-typc activitics, cach major fund, and thc aggrcgatc rcmaining fund 
information of thc Town, as of April 30, 2022, and thc rcspcctivc changcs in financial position, and, whcrc applicablc, 
cash flows thcrcof for thc ycar thcn cndcd in accordancc with accounting principlcs gcncrally acccptcd in thc Unitcd 
Statcs of Amcrica. 

Basisfor Opinions 

Wc conductcd our audit in accordancc with auditing standards gcncrally acccptcd in thc Unitcd Statcs of Amcrica and 
thc standards applicablc to financial audits containcd in Government Auditing Standards, issucd by thc Comptrollcr 
Gcncral of thc Unitcd Statcs. Our rcsponsibilitics undcr thosc standards arc furthcr dcscribcd in thc Auditors 
Rcsponsibilitics for thc Audit of thc Financial Statcmcnts scction of our rcport. Wc arc rcquircd to bc indcpcndcnt of 
thc Town and to mcct our othcr cthical rcsponsibilitics, in accordancc with thc rcicvant cthical rcquircmcnts rclating to 
our audit. Wc bclicvc that thc audit cvidcncc wc havc obtaincd is sufficicnt and appropriatc to providc a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Responsibilities ofManagementfor the Financial Statements 

Managcmcnt is rcsponsiblc for thc prcparation and fair prcscntation of thcsc financial statcmcnts in accordancc with 
accounting principlcs gcncrally acccptcd in thc Unitcd Statcs of Aincrica, and for thc dcsign, implcmcntation, and 
maintcnancc of intcmal control rcicvant to thc prcparation and fair prcscntation of financial statcmcnts that arc frcc 
froin matcrial misstatcmcnt, whcthcr duc to fraud or crror. 

In prcparing thc financial statcincnts, managcmcnt is rcquircd to cvaluatc whcthcr thcrc arc conditions or cvcnts, 
considcrcd in thc aggrcgatc, that raisc substantial doubt about thc Towns ability to continuc as a going conccm for 
twclvc months bcyond thc financial statcmcnt datc, including any currcntly known infonnation that may raisc 
substantial doubt shortly thcrcaftcr. 
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Auditors Responsibilitiesfor the Audil ()flhe Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 
the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, 
we: 

. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Town s intemal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Towns ability to continue as a going concem for a reasonable period oftime. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain intemal control-related matters that we identified during 
the audit. 

Required Supplementaiy Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management s discussion and 
analysis on pages 4 through 10, the schedule of the Town of Lutchers proportionate share of the net pension liability 
for the retirement systems on page 45, the schedule of contributions to each retirement system (defined benefit cost 
sharing plans only) on page 46, the notes to required supplementary information on pages 47 through 48, and the 
budgetary comparison schedule on pages 49 through 5 1 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic flnancial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic fmancial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain lirnited procedures to the required supplementary infonnation in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods ofpreparing 
the infonnation and comparing the information for consistency with managements responses to our inquiries, the basic 
fmancial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the infonnation because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
Towns basic financial statements. The schedule of principal officials and salaries, the schedule of compensation, 
benefits and other payments to agency head or chief executive officer, and the justice system funding schedule — 
collecting/disbursing entity as required by Act 87 of 2020 Regular Legislative Session — cash basis presentation are 
presented for pusposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit ofthe basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare basic the 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica. In our opinion, the schedule ofprincipal officials 
and salaries, the schedule of compensation, benefits and other payments to agency head or chief executive officer, and 
the justice system funding schedule — collectingidisbursing entity as required by Act 87 of 2020 Regular Legislative 
Session — cash basis presentation are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements 
as a whole. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other infonnation included in the annual report. The other information comprises the 
insusance-in-force (without audit) and the public utility system operations (without audit) but does not include the basic 
financial statements and ous auditors report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the 
other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and 
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or 
the other information otherwise appears to be materially inisstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that 
an uncorrected material misstatement of the other infonnation exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Requireð by Governmei,t Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued ous report dated October 3 1, 2022, on our 
consideration of the Towns intemal control over financial reporting and on ous tests of its coinpliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreeinents and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely 
to describe the scope of ous testing of intemal control over financial reporting and coinpliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Towns intemal control over fmancial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Town s intemal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

1,-ÁI41,JI1! 

Donaldsonville, Louisiana 
October 3 1, 2022 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher Louisiana 

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION ANI) ANALYSIS 
Aprii 30, 2022 

This section of the annual financial report of the Town of Lutcher, Louisiana (the Town) presents our discussion 
and analysis ofthe Towns financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on April 30, 2022. P1ease read 
it in conjunction with the Towns financial statements, which follow this section. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Town exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources at the close of the most recent fisca1 year by $5, 104,206 (net position). Ofthis amount, $578,34 ¡ 
(unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the Towns ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 
During the year, the Towns governmental activities expenses were $30,442 more than the $2,775,877 
generated in charges for services, taxes, other revenue, and transfers. In the Towns business-type activities, 
expenses and transfers were $ 16 1,909 more than the $2,5 1 1,256 generated in revenues. 
The general fund reported a $722,499 fund balance for the year. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This annual report consists of four parts - managements discussion and ana1ysis (this section), the basic flnancial 
statements, required supplementary information, and an optional section that presents supplemental statements and 
schedules. The basic financia1 statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the Town: 

• The first two statements are government-wide flnancial statements that provide both long-term and short-
term information about the Towns overall financia1 status and economic condition. 

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individua1 parts of the Towns 
government, reporting the Towns operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. 

The govermnental fund statements tell how general govermnent services, like public safety, were 
financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. 

Proprietary fund statements offer short and long-terrn financia1 information about the activities the 
government operates lilœ businesses, such as the water and sewer system. 

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financia1 statements and 
provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that 
further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. Figure A-1 shows how the required parts 
ofthis annual report are arranged and relate to one another. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION ANÐ ANALYSIS 

ADri1 30, 2022 
Figure A-1 

Features ofthe Towns Government and Fund Financial Statements 

Fund Statements 
Government-wide 

Statements 

Entire Town 
governrnent 

• Statement ofNet 
Position 

• Statement of 
Activities 

Accrnal accounting 
and econornic 
resources focus 

A11 assets and 
liabilities, both 
financial and capital, 
and short-terrn and 
long-term 

A11 revenues and 
expenses during 
year, regardless of 
when cash is 
received or paid  

Governmental Funds 

The activities ofthe 
Town that are not 
proprietary, such as 
police, drainage, and 
streets 

• Balance Sheet 
• Staternent of 

Revenues, 
Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund 
Balances 

Modified accrnal 
accounting and current 
fïnancial resources focus 

On1y assets expected to 
be used up and liabilities 
that come due during the 
year or soon thereafter; 
no capital assets 
included 

Revenues for which cash 
is received during or 
soon after the end of the 
year; expenditures when 
goods or services have 
been received and 
payment is due during 
the year or soon 
thereafter 

Proprietary Funds 

Activities the Town 
operates sirnilar to private 
businesses: the water and 
sewer system 

• Statement of Net 
Position 

• Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes 
in Net Position 

• Staternent of Cash 
Flows 

Accrnal accounting and 
econornic resources focus 

A11 assets and liabilities, 
both financial and capital, 
and short-terrn and 1ong-
terrn 

A11 revenues and expenses 
during year, regardless of 
when cash is received or 
paid 

Scope 

Required 
financial 
statements 

Accounting basis 
and 
rneasurements 
focus 

Type of 
asset/liability 
information 

Type of 
inflow/outflow 
information 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher Louisiana 

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Anril 30 2022 

Government-wide Statements 

The government-wide statements report information about the Town as a whole using accounting methods siniilar to 
those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the governments assets and 
liabilities. AII of the current years revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities regardless 
ofwhen cash is received or paid. 

The two government-wide statements report the Towns net position and how they have changed. Net position - the 
difference between the Towns assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources - is one way to measure the Towns financial health, or position. 

• Over time, increases or decreases in the Towns net position are an indicator ofwhether its financial health is 
improving or deteriorating, respectively. 

• To assess the overall health ofthe Town you need to consider additional non-financial factors such as changcs 
in the Towns property tax base and the condition ofthe Towns roads. 

The government-wide financial statements ofthe Town are divided into two categories: 

• Governmental activities - Most of the Towns basic services are included here, such as the police, streets and 
drainage, sanitation, and general administration. Property taxes, sales taxes, and franchise fees finance most 
of these activities. 

• Business-type activities - The Town charges fees to customers to help it cover the costs of certain services it 
provides. The Towns water and sewer system are includcd hcre. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund flnancial statements provide more detailed information about the Towns most significant funds - not the 
Town as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the Town uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and 
spending for particular purposes. 

• Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants. 

The Town has two kinds offunds: 

Governmental funds - Most ofthe Towns basic services are included in govermnental funds, which focus on 
(1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the 
ba1ances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental fund statements 
provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial 
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the Towns programs. Because this information does 
not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide additional 
information at the bottom of the governmental fund statements, or on the subsequent page, that explains the 
relationship (or differences) between them. The Towns major governmental fund is the General Fund. 

• Proprietary funds - Services for which the Town charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary 
funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide both long and short-term financial 
information. In fact, the Towns enterprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its business-
type activities, but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. The Town has two 
major proprietary funds which are the Sewer Fund and the Water Fund. 
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3,302,457 
638,602 
89,761 

250,270 
978,633 
102.173 

2,813,301 
58,743 

112,255 
372,223 
543,221 

17,987 

5,175,770 
757,115 

1,134,430 
299,645 

2,191,190 
102,025 

4,913,542 
206,843 

1,185,087 
465,932 

1,857,862 
11,216 

1,735,714 1,668,117 
637,917 607,048 

(151,980) (23,072) 
S 2,221,651 $ 2,252,093 

1,893,057 2,010,643 
259,177 297,212 
730,321 736,609 

$ 2,882,555 $ 3,044,464 

TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

MANAGEMENTS ÐISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
ADri1 30, 2022 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN AS A WHOLE 

Net position. The Towns combined net position decreased between fiscal years ended April 30, 2021 and April 30, 
2022 to $5,104,206. (See Table A-1.) 

Table A-1 
Towns Net Position 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

2022 2021 2022 2021 
Current and other assets $ 1,358,438 $ 889,184 
Capital assets 1,832,116 1,782,707 
Restricted assets 35,853 49,819 

Total assets 3,226,407 2,721,710 
Deferred outflows ofresources 76,050 91,591  

$ 1,810,544 
2,9 15,424 

377,983 
5,103,951 

71,819 

$ 1,280,089 
3,107,627 

415,311 
4,803,027 

110,515 
Total assets and deferred 
outflows of resources 

Current liabilities 
Long term liabilities 
Net pension liability 

Total liabilities 
Deferred inflows of resources 

Total liabilities and 
deferred inflows of 
resources 

Net position 
Invested in capital assets, 
net ofrelated debt 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

1,080,806 561,208 2,293,215 1,869,078 

Net position of the Town s governmental activities decreased 1.4 percent to $2,22 1,65 1. Net position of the Towns 
business-type activities decreased 5.3 percent to 52,882,555. 

Changes in net position. The Towns total revenues for the year ended Apri1 30, 2022 increased by $980,574 to 
$4,637,133. Approximately 57.2 percent of the Towns revenue is derived from charges for services, approximately 
14.4 percent is derived from grants and contributions, and approximately 23.1 percent is derived from tax collections. 

The Town s total expenses for the year ended April 30, 2022 increased by $ 1,608, 1 10 to $4,829,484. Approximately 
58. 1 percent of the Towns expenses are the resu1t of its business-type activities and 4 1.9 percent are the result of its 
governniental activities. (See Table A-2) 

The increase in current assets, current liabilities, and expenses is the result of the impacts of Hurricane Ida and the 
cost to the Town in the recovery efforts. Simi1ar1y, the increase in revenues and current assets is due to cost 
reimbursement from the Governors Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness (GOHSEP). 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

MANAGEMENTS ÐISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
ADri1 30, 2022 

Table A-2 
Changes in the Towns Net Position 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

2022 2021 2022 2021 
Revenues 
Program revenues 

Charges for services 
Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 

General revenues 
Taxes 
Franchise taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Fines and forfeitures 
Other revenues 
Total revenues 

Expenses 
General govenmìent 
Streets and drainage 
Public safety 
Sanitation 
Interest 
Water 
Sewer 
Total expenses 

Other financing resources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing 
resources (uses) 

Increase (decrease) in net position 

Beginning net position 
Ending net position 

Governmental Activities  

$ 244,122 $ 249,372 $ 2,378,300 $ 1,941,771 
491,077 15,175 - - 
142,163 185,201 35,000 35,000 

891,526 856,782 70,037 90,399 
110,790 107,936 - - 
143,671 135,187 - - 

1,671 1,761 - - 
100,857 37,975 27,919 - 

2,125,877 1,589,389 2,511,256 2,067,170 

1,692,670 425,529 - - 
555,473 540,981 - - 
286,948 219,901 - - 
267,996 247,977 - - 

3,232 3,863 - - 
- - 912,727 820,884 
- - 1,110,438 962,239 

2,806,319 1,438,251 2,023,165 1,783,123 

657,454 362,805 - - 
(7,454) (12,805) (650,000) (350,000) 

650,000 350,000 (650,000) (350,000) 

(30,442) 501,138 (161,909) (65,953) 

2,252,093 1,750,955 3,044,464 3, 1 10,417 
$ 2,221,651 $ 2,252,093 $ 2,882,555 $ 3,044,464 

Revenues for the Towns govemmental activities increased by $536,488, or 33 .8 percent. Approximately 47. 1 percent 
ofthese revenues are deriveð from ad valorem, sales, anð franchise taxes while nearly 29.8 percent is from capital and 
operating grants and contributions. An additional 1 1.5 percent is derived from charges for services. 

Expenses for the Towns governmental activities increased by $1,368,068, or 95. 1 percent. Majority of this increase 
is in governmental activities as the result of debris cleanup and monitoring activities that were caused ly Hurricane 
Ida in August 2021. 
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$ 49,005 
296,936 
345,635 

1,818,857 
867,760 
355,828 

18,845 

$ 49,005 $ 
296,936 
345,635 

1,787,750 
585,762 
384,890 408,191 
143,833 

10,134,801 
(7,722,423) 

$ 2,915,424 

387,316 
21,268 

10,100,084 
(7,495,896) 
3,107,627 

94,855 $ 94,855 

(1,920,750) (1,811,104) 
$ 1,832,116 $ 1,782,707 

TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher Louisiana 

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Anril 30 2022 

Business-type Activities 

Reveuues for the Towus business-type activities increased by $444,086 or approximately 2 1.5 percent. Charges for 
services provide for approximately 95.8 percent ofbusiness-type reveuues. 

Expenses for the Towns business-type activities increased by $240,042 or 13.5 percent. Approximately 45.2 percent 
of these expenses result from water activities and approximately 54.8 percent are the result of sewer activities. 
Additionally, there was a significant increase in transfers to the general fund in the current year. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWNS GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

As the Town completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $758,352, a decrease 
of$124,597, or 14.1 percent, from last year. 

General Fund Budgetary llighiights 

The Town amended its original budget for the fiscal year. The amendments to the original budget were directly related 
to the impacts that Hurricane Ida had on the Towu. This caused a $1.3 million increase in anticipated expenditures. 
The Towu did not budget for an anticipated increase in revenues for fiscal year 2022 due to the uncertainty of when 
reimbursement wou1d be made by GOHSEP. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets. At the end of April 30, 2022, the Town had invested $4,747,540 in a broad range of capital assets, 
including police equipment, buildings, vehicles, and water and sewer systems. (See Table A-3) This amount represents 
a net decrease (including additions and deductions) of $ l 42,794, or 2.9 percent, compared to last year. 

More information about the Towus capital assets is presented in Note 7 to the flnancial statements. 

Table A-3 
Towns Capital Assets 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
2022 2021 2022 2021 

Land and Improvements 
Buildings and Improvements 
Lutcher Park 
Streets 
Drainage 
Equipment 
Construction in Progress 
Water and Sewer Facility and System 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 
Total 

Currcnt year deprcciation cxpcnse was approximately $375,000. 

This years major capital asset additions included: 
• Various Drainage improvements $160,000 
• Sidewatk upgrades $30,000 
• Various radios $19,000 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher Louisiana 

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Anril 30.. 2022 

Construction in progress consists of engineering and project costs relating to the Buddy Whitney drainage upgrades. 
This project is expected to be completed next fiscal year. At year end, the Town had no construction cominitments as 
a contract for this project has not yet been awarded. 

Long-term debt. At the end of the cttrrent fiscal year, the Town had bonded debt outstanding of $1,206,000 as 
compared to $1,296,000 in the prior year, a decrease of $90,000 or 6.9 percent. (See Table A-4) More information 
about the Towns long-term liabilities is presented in Note 10 to the financial statements. 

General Ob1igation Bonds, Series 2012A 
General øbligation Bonds, Series 2012 
Taxable Limited Bond, Series 2016 
Totai 

Table A-4 
Towns Outstanding Debt 

Governmental Activities Business Activities 
2022 2021 2022 2021 

$ 96,000 S 1 I 4,00() $ - $ - 
- - 700,000 758,000 
- - 317,000 334,000 

$ 96,000 $ 114,000 $ 1,017,000 $ 1,092,000 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEARS BUDGETS AND RATES 

The Towns major sources ofrevenue for the general fund are comprised from taxes (sales, franchise & property) and 
garbage fees at 22.7 percent and 5.7 percent of total revenues, respectively. Additionally, approximately 40.3 percent 
of the Towns budgeted revenues relate to bond proceeds. The economy is not expected to generate any significant 
growth. Expenditures are expected to increase due to additional improvements made to the sewer pond. 

CONTACTING THE TOWNS FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a general 
overview ofthe Towns finances and to demonstrate the Towns accountability for the money it receives. Ifyou have 
questions about this report or need additional financia1 information, contact Mrs. Vanessa Roussel, Town Clerk, PO 
Box 456, Lutcher, LA 70071. 
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$ 721,294 

16,796 
67 

2,664 
39,624 
8,386 

568,520 
1,087 

35,853 
1,832,116 
3,226,407 

$ 1,399,152 

11,013 

398,812 
(8,386) 

9,953 

377,983 
2,9 15,424 
5,103,951 

$ 2,12(),446 

27,809 
67 

2,664 
438,436 

568,520 
11,040 

413,836 
4,747,540 
8,330,358 

76,050 71,819 147,869 
76,050 71,819 147,869 

600,176 59,155 659,33 1 
9,964 12,460 22,424 

18,000 77,000 95,000 
10,462 19,880 30,342 

588,620 588,620 

11,761 80,045 91,806 
114,385 114,385 

78,000 940,000 1,018,000 
250,270 299,645 549,915 
978,633 2,191,190 3, 169,823 

102,173 102,025 204,198 
102,173 102,025 204,198 

TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher. Louisiana 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
APRIL 30. 2022 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 
ASSETS 

Cash 
Receivables: 

Taxes 
Interest 
Other 
Accounts, net 

Interna1 balances 
Due frorn other governrnental units 
Other current assets 
Restricted assets: 

Cash 
Capital assets (net) 

Total assets 

ÐEFERREÐ OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension related 

Total ðeferreð outflows of resources 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrueð payables 
Bonðs due within one year 
Accumulated leave due within one year 
Unearned revenues 
Long-term liabilities: 

Accumulated leave 
Customer service meter ðeposits 
Bonds payable 
Net pension liability 

Total liabilities 

ÐEFERREÐ INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension related 

Total ðeferreð inflows of resources 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 1,735,714 
Restricted for: 

Debt retirement 35,853 
Road maintenance 480,000 
Drainage 122,064 

Unrestricted (15 1,980) 
Total net position $ 2,221,651 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

1,893,057 3,628,771 

259,177 295,030 
480,000 
122,064 

730,321 578,341 
$ 2,882,555 $ 5,104,206 



TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher. Louisiana 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30. 2022 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

Program Revenues 
Operating Capital 

Chargcs for Grants and Grants and 
Functions/Programs Expenses Scrviccs Contributions Contributions 
Functions: 
Governmentai activities: 

General government $ 1,692,670 $ - $ 491,077 $ - 
Streetsanddrainage 555,473 - - 142,163 
Public safety 286,948 - - - 
Sanitation 267,996 244,122 - - 
Interest 3,232 - - - 

Tota1 governmentai activities 2,806,3 19 244, 122 49 1,07 142, 163 
Business-type activities: 

Scwcr 1,110,438 1,684,436 - 35,000 
Watcr 912,727 693,864 - - 

Total busincss-type activitics 2,023,165 2,378,300 - 35,000 
Total primary governrncnt $ 4,829,484 $ 2,622,422 $ 49 ¡ .077 $ 177, 163 

General revenues 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem 
Sales taxes 
Franchise taxes 

Licenses and perrnits 
Fines and forfeitures 
Transfers (to)/from other funds 
Other revenue 

Total general revenues and transfers 
Change in net position 

Net position, April 30, 202 1 
Net position, April 30, 2022 

Thc accornpanying notcs arc an intcgral part ofthis statement. 
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$ (1,201,593) $ - $ (1,201,593) 
(413,310) - (413,310) 
(286,948) - (286,948) 
(23,874) - (23,874) 

(3,232) - (3,232) 
(1,928,957) - (1,928,957) 

- 608,998 608,998 
- (218,863) (218,863) 
- 390,135 390,135 

(1.928,957) 390,135 (1,538.822) 

142,797 70,037 212,834 
748,729 - 748,729 
110,790 - 110,790 
143,671 - 143,671 

1,671 - 1,671 
650,000 (650,000) - 
100,857 27,919 128,776 

1,898,515 (552,044) 1,346,471 
(30,442) (161,909) (192,351) 

2,252,093 3,044,464 5,296,557 
$ 2,221,651 $ 2,882,555 $ 5,104,206 



1,087 

480,000 
122,064 
119,348 
722,499 

35,853 

35,853 

1,087 
35,853 

480,000 
! 22,064 
119,348 
758,352 

$ 1,358,438 $ 35,853 $ 1,394,291 

TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher. Louisiana 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNÐS 
BALANCE SHEET 

APRIL 30, 2022 

Nonmaj or Total 
Debt Governmental 

General Service Funds 

$ 721,294 $ $ 721,294 

16,796 16,796 
67 67 

2,664 2,664 
8,386 8,386 

39,624 39,624 
568,520 568,520 

1,087 1,087 

- 35,853 35,853 
$ 1,358,438 $ 35,853 $ 1,394,291 

$ 600,176 $ - $ 600,176 
20,024 - 20,024 

620,200 - 620,200 

ASSETS 
Cash 
Receivables: 

Taxes 
Intcrcst 
Othcr 
Due from other funds 
Accounts, nct 

Due from othcr govcrnmental units 
Prepaid insurance 
Restricted asscts: 

Cash 
Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payablc 
Accrued payablcs 

Total liabilities 

ÐEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Rcsourccs rccovered prior to timc requircmcnts 

Total deferred inflows ofresources 

FUNÐ BALANCES 
Nonspcndable 
Restncted for dcbt rctirement 
Restricted for road maintenance 
Rcstrictcd for drainagc 
Unassigncd 

Total fund balance 
Total liabilities, deferred inflows 

and fund balances 

15,739 - 15,739 
15,739 - 15,739 

Thc accompanying notcs arc an intcgra1 part of this statcmcnt. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher. Louisiana 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNÐS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

APRIL 30. 2022 

lotal fund balances - governmental funds 

Cost of capital assets at April 30, 2022 
Less: accumulated depreciation as ofApril 30, 2022 

Long-term assets at April 30, 2022 
Deferred outflows - pension related 

Ad valorem tax revenues that were collected more than sixty days after 
year-end and, therefore, are not available soon enough to pay current 
period expenditures 

Long-term liabilities at April 30, 2022 
Bonds payable 
Accrned interest payable 
Accrued sick leave payable 
Accrned compensatory time payable 
Ìet pension liability 
Deferred inflows - pension related  

$ 758,352 

1,832,116 

76,050 

15,739 

(460,606) 

3,752,866 
(1,920,750) 

(96,000) 
(402) 

(9,073) 
(2,688) 

(250,270) 
(102,173) 

Total net position at April 30, 2022 - govemmental activities $ 2,221,651 

The accompanying notes are an integra1 part of this statement. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisìana 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENÐITURES. ANÐ CHANGES IN FUNÐ BALANCES 

YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2022 

Nonmajor Total 
Debt Governrnental 

General Service Funds 
REVENUES 

Ad valorem taxes 
Sales taxes 
Franchise taxes 
Garbage fees 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmenta1 revenue: 

Beer 
Grants 

Fines and forfeitures 
Other revenue 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General governrnent 
Streets and drainage 
Public safety 
Saiiitation 
Capital outlay 

Debt service: 
Principal retirement 
Interest 

Total expenc1itures 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER (UNÐER) EXPENDITURES 

$ 142,959 $ $ 142,959 
748,729 748,729 
1 10,790 110,790 
244,122 244, 122 
143,671 143,671 

496 496 
633,240 633,240 

1,671 1,671 
89,664 89,664 

2,115,342 2,115,342 

1,679,937 1,679,937 
423,775 423 ,775 
298,804 298,804 
267,996 267,996 
198,007 198,007 

- 18,000 18,000 
- 3,420 3,420 

2,868,519 21,420 2,889,939 

(753,177) (21,420) (774,597) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (tJSES) 
Transfers in 650,000 7,454 65 7,454 
Transfers out (7,454) - (7,454) 

Total other financing sonrces 642,546 7,454 650,000 

NET CHANGE IN FU1D BALANCE (110,631) (13,966) 

FUNÐ BALANCE 
Beginningofyear 833,130 49,819 

Endofyear $ 722,499 $ 35,853 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis statement. 

(124,597) 

882,949 

$ 758,352 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUKD BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2022 

Total net chaiigcs in fund baiaiicc - govcrnmental funds $ (124,597) 

Capital assets: 
Capital outlay capitalized 198,007 
Loss on disposal (2,231) 
Depreciation expense for the year ended April 30, 2022 (146,367) 49,409 

Change in ad valorem taxes collected after 60 days 
 

(162) 

Long-term debt: 
Principal portion of debt service payments 
Change in accrued sick leave 
Change in accrued compensatory time 
Excess of interest paid over interest accrued 

18,000 
(3,100) 
7,594 

188  
Net change in pension liability and deferred inflows/outflows ofresources 22,226 44,908 

Change in net position - governmental activities $ (30,442) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 



$ 1,171,653 

326,257 

953 
1,498,863 

$ 227,499 
11,013 
72,555 
1,276 
9,000 

321,343 

$ 1,399,152 
11,013 

398,812 
1,276 
9,953 

1,820,206 

30 
30 

803,063 
803,093 

2,301,956 

36,644 
36,644 

377,953 
377,953 

2,112,361 
2,490,314 
2,811,657 

35,175 
35,175 

377,983 
377,983 

2,9 15,424 
3,293,407 
5,113,613 

71,819 
71,819 

TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

APRIL 30, 2022 
Sewer Fund Water Fund Total 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash 
Taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 
Due from other funds 
Other current assets 

Total current assets 
NONCURRENT ASSETS 

Restricted assets: 
Cash 

Total restricted assets 
Capital assets, net 

Total noncurrent assets 
Total assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension related 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

LIABILITIES 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Payable from current assets: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payables 
Due to other funds 

Unearued revenue 
Payable from restricted assets: 

Bonds payable due within one year 
Total current liabilities 

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accumulated leave 
Customer meter deposits 
Bonds payable 
Net pension liability 

Total noncurrent liabilities 
Total liabilities 

ÐEFERREÐ UFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension related 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for debt retirement 
Uurestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

The accompariying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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39,815 19,340 59,155 
3,791 8,669 12,460 
4,461 5,201 9,662 

588,620 588,620 

- 77,000 77,000 
636,687 110,210 746,897 

76,853 23,072 99,925 
- 114,385 114,385 
- 940,000 940,000 

152,887 146,758 299,645 
229,740 1,224,215 1,453,955 
866,427 1,334,425 2,200,852 

52,056 49,969 102,025 
52,056 49,969 102,025 

803,063 1,089,994 1,893,057 
- 259,177 259,177 

617,054 113,267 730,321 
$ 1,420,117 $ 1,462,438 $ 2,882,555 



$ 327,956 
1,334,392 

6,813 
15,275 

1,684,436 

18,005 
25,628 
24,746 
74,595 
2,395 

177,715 
3 76,960 
14,137 
62,827 

250,579 
82,851 

1,1 10,438 

573,998 

35,000 
16,320 

51,320 

625,3 18 

$ 580,365 

15,453 
98,046 

693,864 

20,199 
19,590 
16,832 

121,627 
7,651 

136,578 
265,171 

7,836 
18,757 

117,548 
146,222 
878,011 

(184,147) 

70,037 

11,599 
(34,716) 
46,920 

(137,227) 

$ 908,321 
1,334,392 

22,266 
113,321 

2,378,300 

38,204 
45,218 
41,578 

196,222 
10,046 

3 14,293 
642,131 
21,973 
81,584 

368,127 
229,073 

1,988,449 

389,851 

70,037 
35,000 
27,919 

(34,716) 
98,240 

488,091 

(650,000) (650,000) 
(650,000) - (650,000) 

(24,682) (137,227) (161,909) 

1,444,799 1,599,665 3,044,464 

$ 1,420,117 $ 1,462,438 $ 2,882,555 

TOWN OF LIJTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

YEAR ENÐEÐ APRIL 30, 2022 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for service 

Utility fees 
User fees - oxidation pond 
Delinquent charges 

Miscellaneous revenues 
Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Professional services 
Payroll taxes 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Office supplies and postage 
Miscellaneous 
Salaries 
Oxidation pond/water plant analysis and treatment 
Electricity 
Materials, supplies, and repairs 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Ad valorem taxes 
Capital grants 
Insurance recovery 
Interest expense 

Total nonoperating revenues 

Income (loss) before transfers 

Transfers out 
Operating transfers 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

Net position, April 30, 2021 

Net position, April 30, 2022 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statemellt. 

Sewer Fund Water Fund Total 
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(23,271) 
623,620 

16,320 

(13,599) 

70,037 
(75,000) 
11,599 

(34,333) 

(36,870) 
623,620 

70,037 
(75,000) 
27,919 

(34,333) 

616,669 (41,296) 575,373 

484,947 (86,721) 398,226 

686,736 692,173 1,378,909 

$ 1,171,683 $ 605,452 S 1,777,135 

TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher. Louisiana 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED APRIL 30. 2022 

Sewer Fund Water Fund Total 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Cash received from customers 
Cash paid to employees and suppliers 
Other receipts from operations 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities  

$ 978,384 $ 586,643 $ 1,565,027 
(475,38 1) (730, 1 14) (1,20,495) 

15,275 98,046 113,321 
518,278 (45,425) 472,g53 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES: 

Transfers to other funds 
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACT1VITIES: 

Acquisition of capital assets 
Capital grant received 
Ad valorem tax 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
lnsurance recovery 
Interest paid on long-term debt 

Net cash provided by (used in) capital 
and related financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - bcginning ofyear 

Cash and cash equivalents - end ofyear 

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 
Cash - current 
Cash - restricted 

(650,000) (650,000) 
(650,000) (650,000) 

$ 1,171,653 $ 227,499 $ 1,399,152 
30 377,953 377.983 

$ 1,171,683 $ 605,452 $ 1,777,135 

(continued) 
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(7,93 1) 
(1,688) 
20,016 

7,588 
(85,929) 
44,368 

$ (45,425) 

(1 10,088) 
(1,688) 
38,696 

(13,906) 
(166,287) 

90,809 
$ 472,853 

TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

PROPRIETARY FUNÐS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENÐEÐ APRIL 30, 2022 

Sewer Funð Water Funð Total 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET 
CASH PROVIÐED BY (USEÐ IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating income (loss) $ 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net 

cash provided by (used in) operating activities - 
Depreciation 
Bad debt expense 

Net changes in assets and liabilities - 
Accounts receivable (102,157) 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Deferred outflows of resources 18,680 
Accounts payable and other liabilities (21,494) 
Net pension liability (80,358) 
Deferred inflows of resources 46,441 

Net cash provided by (uscd in) operating activities $ 518,278 

573,998 $ (184,147) $ 389,851 

82,851 146,222 229,073 
317 16,076 16,393 

(concluded) 

The accompanying notes are an integra1 part of this statement. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Anrii 30 2022 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accountin Policies 

The Town ofLutcher, Louisiana (the Town) was incorporated on March 13, 1912, and operates under a Mayor - 
Board of A1dermen form of government. As authorized by its charter, the Town is responsible for pub1ic safety, 
highways and streets, sanitation, public improvements, and general administrative services. 

The Towns basic fanancial statements consist of the government-wide statements and the fund financial 
statements. The statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles genera1ly accepted in the United 
States ofAmerica as applied to governmental units and promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Codijìcation of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards. Such accounting 
and reporting procedures conform to the requirements of Louisiana Revised Statute 24:5 14, to the guidance set 
forth in the Louisiana Governmental Accounting Guide, and to the industry audit guide, Audits ofState and Local 
Governmental Units published by the American Institute ofCertifled Public Accountants. 

Financial Reporting Entitv 

GASB Codification, Section 2100, Defining the Financial Reporting Entily, establishes criteria for determining 
the governmental reporting entity and component units that should be included within the reporting entity. Since 
the Town is a special purpose government that has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is 
fiscally independent of other state or local governments, it is considered a primary government under the 
provisions of this Statement. As used in GASB Codification, Section 2 100, fiscally independent means that the 
Town may, without the approval or consent ofanother governmental entity, determine or modify its own budget, 
levy its own taxes or set rates or charges, and issue bonded debt. Additionally, the Town does not have any 
component units, which are defaned by GASB Codification, Section 2 100 as other legally separate organizations 
for which the elected officia1s are financia1ly accountable. There are no other primary governments with which 
the Town has a significant relationship. 

The following is a sniniry ofcertain siguificant accounting policies and practiccs: 

Basis of Presentation. Basis of Accounting 

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information 
about the Town ofLutcher. These statements include the financial activities ofthe overall government, except for 
fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These 
statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the Town. Governmental 
activities genera1ly are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. 
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Anrii 30 2022 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accountin Policies (continued) 

Basis of Presentation. Basis of Accounting (continued) 

The statement ofactivities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different 
business-type activities ofthe Town and for each function ofthe Towns governmental activities. Direct expenses 
are those that are specifica11y associated with a program or function and, therefore, are c1ear1y identifiab1e to a 
particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the 
statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or 
services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or 
capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all 
taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Ftind Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Towns funds. Separate 
statements for each fund category - governmental andproprietary - are presented. The emphasis offund financial 
statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated 
with the principal activity ofthe fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up 
essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, resu1t from non-
exchange transactions or ancillary activities. 

The Town reports the following major governmental fund: 

a. General Fund - This is the Towns primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial rcsourccs ofthc gcneral 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The Town reports the following major enterprise funds: 

a. Water Fund - This fund is used to account for operations, (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar 
to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including 
depreciation) of providing the goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered through user charges or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of 
revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, 
management control, accountability, or other purposes. 

b. Sewer Fund - This fund is used to account for operations, (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar 
to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including 
depreciation) of providing the goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered through user charges or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of 
revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, 
management control, accountability, or other purposes. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Anrii 30 2022 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accountin Policies (continued) 

Basis of Presentation. Basis of Accounting (continued) 

Additionally, the Town reports the following non-major governmental fund: 

a. Debt Service Fund - This fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal, 
interest and related costs on general long-term debt. 

Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The govemment-wide and proprietary fund 
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide and 
proprietary funds flnancia1 statements are reported using the accrua1 basis ofaccounting. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time 1iabi1ities are incurred, regard1ess of when the re1ated cash 
flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the Town gives (or receives) value without directly 
receiving (or giving) equa1 va1ue in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an 
accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue 
from grants, entit1ements, and donations is recognized in the fisca1 year in which a11 eligibility requirements have 
been satisfied. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized 
when measurable and available. The Town considers property tax revenues reported in the governmental funds to 
be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days aer year-end. Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise 
taxes, licenses, and interest are considered to be susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when the related 
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and 
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital 
asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in govermnental funds. Proceeds of general long-term ðebt and 
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

Under the terms of grant agreements, the Town funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-
reixnbursement grants, categorical block grants, and genera1 revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, 
there are both restricted and unrestricted fund balances available to flnance the program. It is the Towns policy 
to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then 
by genera1 revenues. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Anrii 30 2022 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accountin Policies (continued) 

Budgets and Budgctary Accounting 

The Town follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in these financial statements: 

1. A proposed budget is prepared and submitted to the Mayor and Board of Aldermen prior to the beginning 
of each fiscal year. 

2. The proposed budget is published in the offlcialjournal and made available for public inspection. A public 
hearing is held to obtain taxpayer comments. 

3. The budget is adopted through the passage of an ordinance prior to the commencement of the fiscal year 
for which the budget is being adopted. 

4. Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, program, or function to 
another or involving increases in expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding amounts originally 
estimated require the approval of the Board of Aldermen. 

5. ALI budgetary appropriations lapse at the end ofeach fiscal year. 

6. Budgets for the general and proprietary funds are adopted on bases consistent with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). 

7. Louisiana R.S. 39: 13 10 requires budgets to be amended when revenue collections plus projected revenue 
collections for the remainder of a year, within a fund, are failing to meet estimated annual budgeted 
revenues by five percent or more or expenditures plus projected expenditures for the remainder ofthe year, 
within a fund, are exceeding estimated budgeted expenditures by flve percent or more. 

The level of budgetary control is total appropriations. Budgeted amounts included in the flnancial statements 
include the originaI adopted budget, and the finaI amended budget. 

Cash and Cash Epuiva1ents 

Cash and cash equiva1ents, which include demand deposit accounts and interest-bearing demand deposit accounts 
are stated at market value. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 33:2955, the Town may deposit funds in obligations 
of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, demand deposit accounts, interest-bearing demand deposit accounts, 
money market accounts, and time certiflcates of deposit with state banks organized under Louisiana law and 
national banks having principaI offices in Louisiana. 

Under state law, the Town may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, or certiflcates ofdeposit. These are 
classifled as cash equivalents if the original maturities are 90 days or less; however, if their original maturity 
exceeds 90 days, these are classifled as investments. Investments are stated at cost and approximate fair vaIue. 

For purposes ofthe statements ofcash flows, the Town considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted 
assets) with original maturities ofthree months or less to be cash equivalcnts. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Anrii 30 2022 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accountin Policies (continued) 

Restricted Assets 

Certain customer meter deposits, debt service sinking funds, and ad valorem tax collections are legally restricted 
as to purpose. These assets have been classified as restricted assets on the Statement ofNet Position since the use 
of these funds is limited by applicable deposit agreements, bond covenants, and tax millages. 

Capitai Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activity columns in the government-wide financial statements. Purchased or 
constructed capital assets with a cost of $ 1,00 or more are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated 
fixed assets are recorded at their estimated acquisition value at the date of donation. The cost of normal 
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not 
capitalized. The Town has elected not to report major general infrastructure assets retroactively. The Town began 
reporting infrastructure assets beginning May 1, 2005. 

Capita1 assets are depreciated using the straight-line mcthod over the following estiniatcd uscful livcs: 

Asset Class 
Buildings and improvements 
Land ixnprovements 
Lutcher park 
Streets 
Drainage 
Equipment 

Estimated Useful Lives 
7-40 years 
20 years 

20-40 years 
20 years 

20-25 years 
5-20 years 

The proprietary fund type operations are accounted for on a cost ofservices or capital maintenance measurement 
focus, and a11 assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with their activity are included on 
the balance sheets. 

Depreciation of a11 exhaustible fixed assets used by the proprietary funds is charged as an expense against their 
operations. Depreciation has been provided over the assets estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. 
The estixnated useful lives are as follows: 

Sewerage system 
Waterworks system 
Office equipment 
Automotive equipment 

Accounts Rcceivable 

40 years 
40 years 

5-10 years 
3-5 years 

Uncollectible amounts due from customers for utility services are recognized as bad debts through the 
establishment of an allowance for uncollectible accounts at the tiine information becomes available which 
indicates the uncollectibility of the particular receivable. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
ADril 30, 2022 

1. Sunimary of Sinificant Accountin Policies (continued) 

Accumulated Leave 

Employees earn vacation and sick leave at various rates depending upon the length oftheir employment. Amounts 
of vested or accumulated vacation are expected to be liquidated with expendable available flnancial resources of 
the general fund and are reported as an expenditure and liability of the fund as the benefits accrue to employees. 
Vested or accumuiated vacation and sick leave of business-type funds is recorded as an expense and liability of 
those funds as the benefits accrue to employees. Additionally, salaried employees can accumulate an unlimited 
amount ofcompensatory time as approved by the Mayor. Any accrued compensatory time balances are to be paid 
at convertible hourly rates at the request of the employee and approval of the Mayor. 

Long Term Debt 

ln the government-wide Statement ofNet Position and in the proprietary fund types flnancial statements, long-term 
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities. Bond issuance costs, excluding any prepaid bond 
insurance, are reported as expense in the year ofdebt issuance. Bonded debt premiums, discounts, and gains (losses) 
on refìindings are deferred and amortized over the life ofthe bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable 
is reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Gains (losses) on reflmdings are reported as deferred 
outflows/inflows of resources. 

ln the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums, discounts, and bond issuance 
costs during the current financial reporting period. The fuce amount ofthe debt issue is reported as other financing 
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources and discounts on debt are 
reported as other flnancing uses. 

Excess revenue contracts, loans, and notes are obligations of the general government and payment of these debts 
are normally provided by transfers from the General Fund to a debt service fund. However, if a debt is intended 
to be repaid by an enterprise fund it is recorded as a proprietary long-term debt. 

Ad valorem tax revenue bonds are secured by ad valorem tax revenues. For those issues not associated with 
enterprise fund operations, payment of the debt is provided by ad va1orem tax revenue recognized in the 
appropriate debt service fund. Ad va1orem tax revenue bond issues associated with enterprise funds are accounted 
for in the relevant enterprise fund. 

Pension Plans 

The Town ofLutcher is a participating employer in two cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension 
plans as described in Note 14. For purposes ofmeasuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows ofresources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of each of the plans, and additions to/deductions from the pians fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plan. For this purpose, beneflt payments (inciuding 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
lnvestments have been reported at fair value within the pians. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Anrii 30 2022 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accountin Policies (continued) 

Eguity Classifications 

Governrnent-wide Statements: In the government-wide statements, equity is ciassificd as nct position and 
displaycd in three components: 

a. Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net 
of accumu1ated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, 
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of 
those assets. 

b. Restricted net position — Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) 
extemal groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regu1ations of other 
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

c. Unrestricted net position — AI1 other nct position that do not rncct the definition ofrestrictcd or 
net investment in capital assets. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use for a particular project or service, it is the 
Towns policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Fund Financial Statements: In the fund financial statements, governmental fund equity is classified as fund 
balance. Accounting standards require governmental fiind balances to be recorded in as many as five 
classifications as listed below: 

a. Nonspendable — amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form or 
because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

b. Restricted — amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by 
creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations ofother governments. 

c. Comniitted — amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal decision 
of the Board of Aldermen, which is the highest level of decision-making authority. 

d. Assigned — amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but that 
are intended to be used for specific purposes. 

e. Unassigned — all other spendable amounts. 

When expenditures are incurred for the purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted amounts are available, 
the Town reduces restricted amounts first, followed by unrestricted amounts. When expenditures are incurred for 
purposes for which committed, assigned, and unassigned amounts are available, the Town reduces committed 
amounts flrst, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts. 

lntcrfund Ba1ances / Transfers 

Advances between funds which are not expected to be repaid are accounted for as transfers. In those cases, where 
repayment is expected, the transfers are accounted for through the various due from and due to accounts. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Anril 30 2022 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accountin Policies (continued) 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

The statement offlnancial position will often report a separate section for deferred outflows and (or) deferred inflows 
offlnancial resources. Deferred ouijlows ofresources represents a consumption ofnet position that applies to a fiture 
period(s) and so Wi11 not be recognized as an outflow ofresources (expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred inflows 
ofresources represents an acquisition ofnet position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 

The primary govermnents deferred outflows and deferred inflows ofresources on the statement of net position are a 
result ofdeferrals concerning pensions. 

Estimates 

The preparation of flnancial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the flnancial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenscs/expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Encurnbrances 

Encumbrance accounting, under which contracts and other cominitments for the expenditure ofmonies are recorded 
in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is not employed by the Town. 

Risk Managcment 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; business 
interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; and employee hea1th, dental, 
and accident benefits. The Town carries commercial insurance for all risks of loss. 

Arbitragc Liability 

Section 148 ofthe Interna1 Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, requires that issuers oftax exempt debt make arbitrage 
calculations annually on bond issues issued after August 31, 1986, to determine whether an arbitrage rebate liability 
exists between the issuer and the U.S. Department of Treasury. Arbitrage is the difference (or proflt) earned from 
borrowing funds at tax exempt rates and investing the proceeds in higher yielding taxable securities. There are no 
arbitrage rebate liabilities outstanding to the U.S. Department ofTreasuiy for Town issues at April 30, 2022. 

Current Year Adoytion ofNew Accounting Standards 

The Town adopted GASB Statement No. 89 (GASB 89), Accounlingfor Interest Cost Incurred before the End ofa 
Construction Period. This Statement aims to improve flnancial reporting by providing users of flnancial statements 
with more relevant information about capital assets and the cost ofborrowing for a reporting period. The provisions 
ofGASB 89 are effective for flnancial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2020. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
ADriI 30, 2022 

Cash 

At April 30, 2022, the carrying amounts ofthe Towns deposits wcrc as follows: 

Petty cash $ 200 
Demand deposit accounts/savings accounts 2,120,246 
Restricted cash 413,836 

Total $ 2,534,282 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits must be secured by 
either federal deposit insurance or by the pledge of securities owned by a fiscal agent bank. The market value of 
the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the 
fiscal agent bank. 

3. Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event ofa financial institution failure, the Towns deposits may not be 
returned to it. The Town does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. To mitigate this risk, state law 
requires deposits to be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent 
financial institution. At April 30, 2022, the Towns bank balances tota1ed $2,620,429. Of these bank ba1ances, 
$500,000 was covered by federa1 depository insurance, and $2, I 20,429 was collatera1ized with securities held by 
the pledging financial institutions trust department or agent in the Towns name. 

4. Receivables 

Receivables as of April 30, 2022 for the Towns funds in the aggregate, including the applicable a1lowances for 
uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

Governmental 
Activities _______ 

Sewer 
General Fund Fund 

$ 16,796 $ 
67 

43,756 330,959 
2,664 

63,283 330,959 
(4,132) (4,702) 

$ 59,151 $ 326,257  

Business-type 
Activities 

Total 
Water Business-type 
Fund Activities 

$ 11,013 $ 11,013 

99,857 430,816 

110,870 441,829 
(27,302) (32,004) 

$ 83,568 $ 409,825 

Receivables: 
Property taxes 
Interest 
Accounts 
Other 

Gross receivables 
Less: allowance for uncollectibles 

Net receivables 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
April 30, 2022 

5. Due from Other Governmental Units 

At April 30, 2022, the Town has $133,561 due from the St. James Parish School Board for sales tax collections. 
Additionally, the Town has $434,959 due from the Govemors Office of Homeland Security and Emergency 
Preparedness relating to Hurricane Ida recovery reimbursements. 

6. Interfunð Receivables anð Payables 

Interfund receivables and payables as of April 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Interfund Receivables 
General Fund $ 8,386 
Water Fund 1,276 
Sewer Fund - 
Total $ 9,662 

Interfund Payables 
General Fund $ - 
Water Fund 5,201 
Sewer Fund 4,461 
Total $ 9,662 

Interfund receivable and payable balances represent short-term borrowings between funds. 

7. Capital Assets 

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended April 30, 2022, are as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

Cost at April 30, 2021 
Additions 
Deletions 

Land and Buildings and Lutcher Construction 
Improvements Improvements Park Streets Drainage Eguipment in progress Total 
$ 49,005 $ 296,936 $ 345,635 $1,787,750 $ 585,762 $ 384,890 $ 143,833 $ 3,593,811 

- - - 31,107 144,682 9,890 12,328 198,007 

(38,952) (38,952) 
Transfers 137.316 137.31 
Cost of Capital Assets 

April 30, 2022 49,005 296,936 345,635 1,818,857 867,760 355,828 18,845 3,752,866 

Accumulated depreciation 
Apri130,2021 8,060 241,266 295,635 588,117 338,945 339,081 - 1,811,104 

Additions 496 6,410 - 90,994 37,636 10,831 - 146,367 
Deletions - - - - - (36,721) - (36,721) 
Accumulated depreciation 

Apri130,2022 8,556 247,676 295,635 679,111 376,581 313,191 - 1,920,750 

Capital Assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation 
atApri130,2022 $ 40,449 $ 49,260 $ 50,000 $1,139,746 $491,179 $ 42,637 $ 18,845 $ 1,832,116 

Capital assets above that are not being depreciated include land in the amount of $39,085 included in Land and 
lmprovements and Construction in progress of $ 18,845. Additionally, land in the amount of $50,000 included in 
Lutcher Park is not being depreciated. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
ADri1 30 2022 

7. CaDitai Assets (continued) 

Depreciation expense of $146,367 for the year cnded April 30, 2022 was charged to the following governmental 
fúnctions: 

Business-type activities: 

General Governincnt 
Streets and Drainage 
Public Safety 

$ 13,497 
129,560 

3,310 
$ 146,367 

Water and Sewer Construction 
Land and Facility and in 

Improvements System Eguipment Progress Total 
Total Cost of Capital Assets 

April 30, 2021 
Additions 
Deietions 
Transfers 
Cost ofCapital Assets 

April 30, 2022 

Accumulated depreciation 
April 30, 202 1 

Additions 
Deletions 
Accumulated depreciation 
April 30, 2022 

Capital Assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation at 

April 30, 2022 

$ 94,855 $ 10,100,084 $ 387,316 $ 21,268 $ 10,603,523 
- 13,449 23,421 - 36,870 
- - (2,546) - (2,546) 
- 21,268 - (21,268) - 

94,855 10,134,801 408,191 - 10,637,847 

18,5 1 1 7,2 1 1,590 265,795 - 7,495,896 
1,328 193,934 33,811 - 229,073 

- - (2,546) - (2,546) 

19,839 7,405,524 297,060 - 7,722,423 

S 75,016 S 2,729,277 $ l 11,131 S - $ 2,915,424 

Capital assets above that arc not bcing dcprcciatcd includc land in the amount of $66,100 included in land and 
improvements. 

Dcprcciation expense of $229,073 for the year ended April 30, 2022 was charged to the following governmental 
functions: 

Sewer Fund $ 82,851 
Water Fund 146,222 

$ 229,073 

Construction Commitment 

As of April 30, 2022, the Town had no construction commitments. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher. Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Anril 30. 2022 

8. Ðisareation of Accounts Payable and Accrued Payables 

Accounts payables and accrued payables as of April 30, 2022 were as follows: 

Vendors 
Salaries and benefits payable 
Total encumbrances 

9. Accumulated Leave 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

600,176 59,155 659,331 
9,964 12,460 22,424 

610,140 71,615 681,755 

The following is a summary ofthe changes in accumulated leave for the year ended April 30, 2022: 

Balance Balance Due within 
4/30/202 1 Additions Deletions 4/30/2022 one year 

Governmental: 
Compensated absences 
Compensatory time 

Tota1 governmental 
Business-type: 

Compensated absences 
Compensatory time 

Total business-typc 
Total primary government 

10. Lon-term Debt  

$ 13,141 $ 19,721 $ 13,327 $ 19,535 $ 10,462 
10,282 25,095 32,689 2,688 - 
23,423 44,816 46,016 22,223 10,462 

52,092 39,353 36,638 54,807 19,880 
22,275 53,408 30,565 45,118 - 
74,367 92,761 67,203 99,925 19,880 

$ 97,790 $ 137,577 $ 113,219 $ 122,148 $ 30,342 

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions which occurred during the year ended April 30, 2022: 

ßalance Balance Due within 
4/30/2 1 Additions Retirement 4/30/22 One Year 

s 
Governmental activities: 

Direct borrowing and placement of debt: 
General Obligation 

Bonds, Series 
2012A $ 114,000 $ - $ 18,000 $ 96,000 $ 18,000 

$ 114,000 $ - $ 18,000 $ 96,000 $ 18,000 

Business-type activities: 
Direct borrowing and placement of debt: 

General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2012 $ 758,000 

Taxable Limited 
Bonds, Series 2016 334,000 

$ 1,092,000 

 

$ 58,000 $ 700,000 $ 60,000 

17,000 317,000 17,000 
$ 75,000 $ 1,017,000 $ 77,000 



TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Anril 30 2022 

1 O. Lon-term Debt (continucd) 

Dircct borrowings and placcmcnts at April 30, 2022 were comprised ofthe following individual issucs: 

Governmental activities: 

Debt Service Fund 
$255,000 of General øbligation Bonds, Series 2012A; due in various 
semi-annual installments, including interest at 3%, through 
March 1, 2027; payable from ad valorem taxes. The bond document 
does not list any terms of events of default, termination events with 
financial related consequences, nor subjective acceleration clauses. $ 96.004) 

Business-type activities: 

Water Fund 
$1.1 million ofGeneral Obligation Bonds, Series 2012; due in various 
semi-annual installments, including interest at 2.95%, through 
March 1, 2032; payable from ad va1orem taxes. Events of default include 
failure to make punctual payment of principal amount due, failure to make 
punctual payment of any installment of interest that is due and payable, 
performance or observance of any other of the covenants, agreements, or 
conditions are not made and continues for a period of45 days, or ifthe Town 
shall file a petition or other seek of relief under Federal or State bankruptcy 
law or other similar law. The Bond is subject to prepayment at any time at a 
price equal to the principal amounts thereof advanced to the Issuer plus accrued 
interest to the date ofprepayment. The bond document does not list any terms 
related to termination events with finance related consequences nor subjective 
acceleration clauses. $ 700,OO() 

S500,000 ofTaxable Limited Bonds, Series 2016; due in various 
semi-annual instathnents, including interest at ¡ .95%, through 
March 1, 2037; payable from ad va1orem taxes. The bond document 
does not list any terms of events of default, termination events with 
financia1 related consequences, nor subjective acceleration clauses. 3 1 7,OO() 

$ ¡ ,() 1 7,OO() 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
April 30, 2022 

10. Lon-term Ðebt (continued) 

The annual requirernents to arnortize all debt outstanding as ofApril 30, 2()22, are as follows: 

Year ending 
April 30, 

2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

2028-2032 
2033 — 2037 

Principal 
$ 95,000 

100,000 
102,000 
105,000 
108,000 
485,000 
118,000 

$1,113,000 

Interest 
$ 29,731 

27,090 
24,320 
21,492 
18,574 
52,279 

7,059 
$ 180,545 

Total 
$ 124,731 

127,090 
126,320 
126,492 
126,574 
537,279 
125,059 

$ 1,293,545 

As part of the various bond agreements the Town has agreed to comply with certain covenants. The covenants 
consist, primarily, of reporting and audit requirements, maintenance of various deposit accounts and funds, and 
other administrative requirements. 

Computation of legal debt margin for general obligation bonds is as follows: 

Ad valorem tax — Assessed valuation, 2021 tax rolls 
Debt limit: 10% of assessed valuation (for any purpose) 
Debt limit: 15% of assessed valuation (for sewerage purposes) 
Debt lirnit: 35% of assessed valuation (aggregate, all purposes) 

1 1. Ad Valorern Taxes 

17,805,779 
1,780,578 
2,670,867 
6,232,023 

Ad valorem taxes attach as enforceable liens on all applicable property on February 28th of each year. Taxes are 
levied and are billed to the taxpayers in November of each year. Billed ad valorem taxes become delinquent on 
January 1 st of the following calendar year. 

The Town bills and collects its own property taxes using the assessed values determined by the tax assessor of St. 
James Parish. During the year ended April 30, 2022 taxes of 7 mills were authorized and levied on property with 
assessed valuations totaling $ 17,805,779 for general purposes. Additional taxes of 4.59 mills were authorized and 
levied on the same property for the purpose of accumulating enough funds to service the annual debt requirements 
as they become due. A11 millages expire on December 3 1, 202 1. Ad valorem taxes levied during the year ended 
April 30, 2022 totaled $206,372. 

12. SalesTaxes 

The Town receives a 1 % sales tax collected on sales occurring within the boundaries of the Town of Lutcher. These 
proceeds are available for any lawful purpose ofoperating a municipality. The Town receives an additional 1 percent 
sales tax for the purpose of constructing, improving, extending and maintaining streets, drainage, water, sewer 
infrastructure and sewerage treatment works; and purchasing necessary equipment and land for any ofthe aforesaid 
public works, improvements and facilities. The Town recognized $748,729 of sales tax revenue during the year 
ended April 30, 2022. These taxes do not expire. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
April 30 2022 

13. Transfers toifrom Other Funds 

Interfund transfers at April 30, 2022, were as follows: 

Fund 
General Fund 
Debt Service Fund 
Sewer Fund 

Transfers In 
$ 650,000 

7,454 

$ 657,454  

Transfers Out 
$ 7,454 

650,000 
$ 657,454 

14. Pension and Retirement Plans 

The Town is a participating employer in two cost-sharing defined benefit pension plans. These plans are 
administered by two public employee retirement systems, the Municipal Employees Retirement System of 
Louisiana (MERS) and the Municipa1 Police Employees Retirement System (MPERS). Article X, Section 29(F) 
ofthe Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions ofthese plans 
to the State Legislature. Each system is administered by a separate board oftrustees. 

Each of the Systems issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financiai statcmcnts and 
required suppiementary information for the system. Thesc rcports may be obtained by writing, calling or 
downloading the reports as follows: 

MERS: 
7937 Office Park Boulevard 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 
(225) 925-4810 
www.mersla.com 

Plan Descriptions: 

MPERS: 
7722 Office Park Boulevard, Suite 200 
Baton Rouge, LA 70809 
(225) 929-741 l 
www.lampers.org 

Municinal Employees Retirement Svstem of Louisiana (MERS) 

The Municipal Employees Retirement System ofLouisiana (MERS) is the administrator ofa cost-sharing multiple-
employer deflned benefit pension plan. The plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to eligible 
state employees as defined in LRS l 1:1732. The age and years of credible service required in order for a member 
to receive retirement benefits are established by LRS 1 1: 180 1. 

u n ic ipì l Police Emnloyees Retirement Svstem of Louisiana (MPERS) 

The Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (MPERS) is the administrator of a cost sharing 
mu1tiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The plan provides retirement benefits for municipal police 
officers. The projections ofbenefit payments in the calculation of the totai pension liability includes all benefits to 
be provided to current active and inactive employees through the System in accordance with benefit terms and any 
additional Iega1 agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. Benefit provisions are 
authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amendedby LRS l 1:2211 — 11:2233. 
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Lutcher Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
April 30g 2022 

14. Pension and Retirement Plans (continued) 

Funding Policy: 

Article X, Section 29(E)(2)(a) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the Legislature the authority to 
determine employee contributions. Employer contributions are actuarially determined using statutorily established 
methods on an annual basis and are constitutionally required to cover the employers portion ofthe normal cost and 
provide for the amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Employer contributions are adopted by the 
Legislature annually upon recommendation ofthe Public Retirement Systems Actuarial Committee (PRSAC). 

Contributions to the p1ans are required and determined by State statute (which may be amended) and are expressed 
as a percentage ofcovered payroll. The contribution rates in effect for the year ended April 30, 2022, for the Town 
and covered employees were as follows: 

Municipal Employees Retirement System P1an B 
Members hired prior to 0 1/0 1/20 13 
Members hired after 0 1/01/2013 

Municipal Police Employees Retirement Systems 
ALI employees hired prior to 01/01/2013 and all 

Hazardous Duty employees hired after 
01/01/2013 

Non-Hazardous Duty (hired after 01/01/2013) 
Employees receiving compensation below 
poverty guidelines ofUS Department ofhealth 

Town 

15.50% 
15.50% 

29.75% 

29.75% 

32.25% 

Employees 

5.00% 
5.00% 

10.00% 

8.00% 

7.50% 

Thc contributions made to the Systems for the past three fisca1 years, which cqualcd thc rcquircd contributions for 
cach of the years ending April 30, 2022 were as follows: 

Municipal Employees Rctircincnt System 
Plan B 

Municipa1 Police Employees Retirement 
Systern 

2022 202 ¡ 202() 

$ 85,759 $ 78,434 $ 81,895 

$ 25,915 $ 15,687 $ 15,672 

Support of Non-Employer Contributing Entities 

Contributions received by a pension plan from non-employer contributing entities that are not in a specia1 funding 
situation are recorded as revenue by the respective pension plan. The Town recognized revenue in an amount equal 
to their proportionate share of the total contributions to the plan from these non-employer contributing entities as 
follows: 

Municipal Employees Retirement System P1an B $ 20,183 
Municipal Police Employees Retirement System 3,441 

$ 23,624 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
ADril 30, 2022 

14. Pension and Retirement Plans (continucd) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows ofResources and Deferred Inflows ofResources 
Related to Pensions: 

The following schedule lists the Towns proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability allocated by each of the 
pension plans based on the June 30, 202 1 measurement date. The Town uses this measurement to record its Net 
Pension Liability and associated amounts as ofApril 30, 2022 in accordance with GASB Statement 68. The schedule 
also includes the proportionate share allocation rate used at June 30, 2021 along with the change compared to the 
June 30, 2020 rate. The Towns proportion of the Net Pension Liability was based on the Towns share of 
contributions to the pension pian relative to the contributions ofall participating employers. 

Net Pension 
Liabiiity at Ratc at Increase on June 

June 30, 2021 Junc 30, 202 1 30, 2020 Rate 

Municipal Employees Retirement System 
P1anB 

Municipa1 Police Employees Retirement 
System 

$ 467,830 0.8076% 

82,085 0.0154% 
$ 549,915 

0.0374% 

0.0002% 

The following schcdu1c lists thc pcnsion plans recognized pension expense ofthe Town for the year ended April 
30, 2022: 

Municipal Employees Retirement System Plan B 
Municipal Police Employees Retirement System  

Governmenta1 Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

$ 25,795 $ 45,958 $ 71,753 
4,538 - 4,53 

$ 30,333 $ 45,958 $ 76,291 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher. Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Anril 30 2022 

14. Pension and Retirement Plans (continued) 

At April 30, 2022, the Town rcportcd deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

pension pian investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between Employer 

contributions and proportionate share ofcontributions 
Employer contributions subsequent to measurement date 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

28,022 

23,411 
96,436 

$ 147,869 

Deferred Inf1ows of 
Resources 

$ (21,833) 
(2,342) 

(i 64,752) 

(15,271) 

$ (204,198) 

Summary totals of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources by pension plan: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of 
of Resources Resources 

Municipal Employees Retirement System P1an B 
Municipal Police Employees Retirement System 

$ 
112,129 
35,740 

$ 
147,869 

(159,289) 
(44,909) 

$ (2()4,198) 

The Town reported a total of $96,436 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension contributions made 
subsequent to the measurement period of June 30, 202 1 which will be recognized as a reduction in Net Pension 
Liability in the year ended April 30, 2023. The following schedule list the pension contributions made subsequent 
to the measurement period for each pension plan: 

Subsequent 
Contributions 

Municipal Employees Retirement System Plan B $ 73,053 
Municipal Police Employees Retirement System 23,383 

$ 96,436 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows ofresources and deferred inflows ofresources related to pensions will 
be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year MERS 
2023 $ (20,071) 
2024 (22,926) 
2025 (32,790) 
2026 (44,426) 

$ (120,213) 

MPERS 
$ (6,530) 

(5,980) 
(6,834) 

(13,208) 
$ (32,552) 

Total 
$ (26,601) 

(28,906) 
(39,624) 
(57,634) 

$ (152,765) 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Anril 30 2022 

14. Pensioti and Retireinent Plans (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

A summary ofthe actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability for each pension 
plan as ofJune 30, 2021, are as follows: 

Vatuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Expcctcd Remaining 
Scrvicc Lives 
lnvcstrncnt Rate of 
Rct urn 

lntlatioti Rate  

MERS 
June 30, 2021 

Entry Age Normal Cost 

3 years 

6.850% 

2.500%  

MPERS 
June 30, 2021 

Enlry Age Normal cost 

4 years 

6.750% 

2.500% 

For annuitant and bcneficiary mortality tables 
used were PubG-2OIO(B) Healthy Retiree 
Table set equal to 120% for males and fenialcs, 
each adjusted usmg their respective malc and 
female MP2018 scales. 
For employees, the PubG-2010(B) Employee 
Table set equal to 120% for males and females, 
each adjusted usmg their respective male and 
female MP2018 scales. 
For disable lives morality, PubNS-2010(B) 
Disabled Retiree Table set equalto 120% males 
and females with the fuil generational MP2018 
scale. 

For annuitant and beneficiaries, the Pub-2010 
Public Retirement Plan Mortality Table for 
Safety Below-Median Healthy Retirees 
multiplied by l 15% for maies and 125% for 
females, each with full generational projection 
using the MP2019 scale. 
For employees, the Pub-2010 Public 
Retirement Plans Mortality Table for Safety 
Below-Median Employees multiplied by 1 15% 
for males and l 25% for females, each with full 
generational projection using the MP2019 
scale. 
For disabled lives, the Pub-2010 Public 
Retirement Plants Mortality Table for Safety 
Disable Retirees multiplied by 105% for males 
and 115% for females, each with full 
generational projection using the MP2OI9 
scale. 

slortalit 

Salary lncreases Years of Service Salary Growth Rate 
1-4 years ofservice - 7.4% - Plan B 1-2 12.30% 
Over 4 years ofservice — 4.9% - Plan B Above 2 4.70% 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Anril 30 2022 

I -t. Pension attd Retirenient PI (continued) 

ctuarial Assti nlptions (continued) 
MERS 

(ost of L.iviiig The Systern is authorized under state law 
%.djuslincnts to grant a cost of 1iving increase to 

members who have been reiired for at least 
one year. The adjustment cannot exceed 
2% ofthe retirees original benefit for each 
full calendar year since retirernent and 
rnay only be granted ifsufficient funds are 
availabte from investment income in 
excess of norrnal requirements. State law 
allows the System to grant an additional 
cost of living increase to all retirees and 
beneficiaries who are age sixty-flve and 
above equal to 2% of the benefit being 
received on October 1, 1977, or the 
original benefit, if rctirernent cornmenced 
afier that date. 

MPERS 
The presellt value of future retirernent 
benefits is based on benefits currently 
being paid by the Systern and includes 
previously granted cost-of-living 
increases. The present vatues do not 
include provisions for potential future 
increases not yet authorized by the Board 
of Trustees. 

The following schedule list the methods nsed by each of the retirement systems in determining thc long tcrm 
rate of return on pension plan investments: 

MERS 
The long-terrn expected rate of return on pension plan 
investrnents was deterrnined using a building-block 
inethod in which best-estirnated ranges of expected 
future real rates of rctum (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 
developed for each rnajor asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by 
adding expected inflation of 2.60% and an adjustrnent 
for the effect of rebalancing /diversification. The 
resulting expected long-term rates of return is 6.95% 
for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

MPERS 
The forecasted long-tenn expected rate ofretum on pension 
plan investinents was deteniiined using a building-block 
method in which best-estiinates ranges of expected future 
real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
inveslrnent expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined 10 produce the 
long-term expected rate ofreturn by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.22% and 
an adjustrnent for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. 
The resulting forecasted long term rate of retum is 7.30% 
for the year ended June 30, 202 1. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher. Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Anril 30 2022 

14. Pension and Retirement Plans (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions (continued) 

The following table provides a summary of the best estimates of arithmetic/geometric real rates of return for each 
major asset class included in each ofthe Retirement Systems target asset allocations as ofJune 30, 202 1: 

Target Allocation 
MERS MPERS 

53.O% - 
- 55.5% 

38.O% - 
- 30.5% 

9.O% 14.O% 

100.O% 100.O% 

Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate ofReturn 

MERS MPERS 
2.31% - 

- 3.48% 
1.65% - 

- O.59% 
O.39% 1.O1% 

4.35% 5.08% 

2.60% 2.22% 

6.95% 7.30% 

Asset Ciass 
Public equity 
Equity 
Public fixed income 
Fixed income 
Alternatives 

Total 
Inflation 
Expected Arithinetic Noininal Rcturn 

Discount Rate: 

The projection ofcash flows used to detennine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be 
made at the current contribution rate and that sponsor contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference 
between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, each ofthe 
pension plans fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate ofreturn on pension pian investments was applied 
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The discount rate used to 
measure the total pension liability for MERS and MPERS was 6.850% and 6.750%, respectively for the 
measurement period ending June 30, 202 1. 

Sensitivity of the Employers Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate: 

The following table presents the Towns proportionate share ofthe Net Pension Liability (NPL) using the discount 
rate of each retirement system as well as what the Towns proportionate share of the NPL would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point higher than the current 
rate used by each of the retirement systems: 

1.O% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.0% Increase 
MERS (Plan B) 

Rates 
Town ofLutchers Share ofNPL 

MPERS 
Rates 
Town ofLutchers Share ofNPL 

5.850% 
$ 717,747 $ 

5.750% 
$ 143,061 $ 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Anril 30 2022 

15.Restncted Assets 

Under the terms of the bond indentures for the general obligation bonds, certain revenues are dedicated to the 
retirement of said bonds, and are to be set aside into special accounts after provisions have been made for the 
payment of the reasonable and necessaiy expenses of operating and maintaining the utility systems. The balances 
in the reserve accounts total $295,050. 

As of April 30, 2022, the Town was in compliance with all related debt covenants, excluding the two late debt 
payments identified in the schedule offindings and recommendations. 

At April 30, 2022, the Town has $1 18,786 ofcash restricted for the reflmding ofcustomer meter deposits. 

16.Commitments 

The Town has entered into lease obligations for the rental of equipment. Leases that do not meet criteria for 
capitalization are classifled as operating leases with related rentals charged to operations as incurred. 

Operating lease expenditurcs amounted to $27 1,203 for the year ended April 30, 2022. 

The following is a schedule by year of future minimum lease payments under these arrangements as of April 30, 
2022, that have initial or remaining terms in excess of one year. 

Year Ending April 30, 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

Minimum Payments 
$ 123,882 

1,674 
1,674 
1,674 
1,255 

$ 130,159 

17.Tax Abatement 

The local government is subject to certain property tax abatements granted by the Louisiana State Board of 
Commerce and Industry (the State Board), a state entity governed by board members representing major 
economic groups and gubernatorial appointees. Abatements to which the government may be subject include those 
issued for property taxes under the Industria1 Tax Exemption Program (ITEP) and the Restoration Tax 
Abatement Program (RTAP). In addition, the loca1 government has the authority to grant sales tax rebates to 
taxpayers pursuant to the Enterprise Zone Tax Rebate Program (EZ Program). For the year ending April 30, 
2022, the Town did not participate in any Tax Exemption Programs. 
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35,853 35,853 

480,000 
122,064 
603,151 
1 19,348 

$ 722,499 

35,853 

$ 35,853 

480,000 
122,064 
639,004 
119,348 

$ 758,352 

TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher. Louisiana 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Anril 30. 2022 

18. Ðetailed Restricted Net Position and Fund Balances 

Details of restricted Net Position as reported in the government-wide Statement ofNet Position are as follows: 

Business 
Governmental Type 

Activities Activities Total 
Net position restricted for: 

Debt services: 
Debt service for Water Fund general obligation bonds 
Debt service for Water Fund taxable limited bonds 
Debt service for general obligation bonds 

Capital improvements: 
Road maintenance 
Drainage project 

Total restricted net position 

$ - $ 251,053 $ 251,053 
- 8,124 8,124 

35,853 - 35,853 

480,000 - 480,000 
122,064 - 122,064 

$ 637,917 $ 259,177 $ 897,094 

Details of nonspendable, restricted, and unassigned fund balances at year-end are as follows: 

Nonmajor 
Debt Service 

General Fund Fund 
Fund balances: 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

Nonspendable: 
Prepaid insurance 

Restricted: 
Debt services: 

Debt service for general obligation bonds 
Capital improvements: 

Road maintenance 
Drainage project 

Total Restricted 
Unassigned 
Total fund balances 

$ 1,087 $ - $ 1,087 

19. Continencies 

The Town received one-half of its allocated portion of the federal Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery 
Funds (CSLFRF) enacted under the American Rescue Plan Act totaling $588,620. In September 2022, the Town 
received its remaining allocation totaling approximately $589,000. Since the Town did not incur eligible 
expenditures on the CSLFRF allocation during fiscal year 2022, the amount received is recorded as unearned 
revenue in the Sewer Fund. The Town expects to spend these funds during 2023 and subsequent years on eligible 
expenditures. These funds are subject to repayment to the United States Treasury ifnot spent on eligible activities 
or programs. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Anril 30 2022 

20. Subseauent Events 

On June 23, 2022, the Town issued Taxable Utilities Revenue Bond, Series 2022A in the amount of $ 1,050,000 
with an interest rate of 0.450 percent. As of the date of these financial statements, the Town has drawn 
approximately $40,000. The bond is set to mature December 1, 2042. 

On August 16, 2022, the Town issued Taxable Hurricane Recovery Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 in the amount 
of $ 1,250,OOO with an interest rate of 4.00 percent. The bonds are set to mature September 1, 2027. These bonds 
are secured by FEMA revenues expected to be recovered as a result of Hurricane Ida. 

21. Current ccountin Stndards Schediiled to be Implemented 

Following is a summary of the accounting standards adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) that are scheduled to be implemented in the future that may affect the Towns flnancial report: 

GASB Statement 87, Leass. This standard will require all leases to be reported on the statement ofnet position 
under a single accounting moðel for both lessors and lessees. The statement will require the recognition of lease 
assets or liabilities for leases previously reported as operating leases. Both operating and capital leases will be 
reported under this single accounting method and reported by lessees as an intangible right to use asset and by 
lessors as a receivable with both reporting a deferred inflow of resources. The standard is effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 202 1. The Town will include the requirements of this standard, as 
applicable, in its April 30, 2023 financial statements. AII ofthe Towns lease agreements will need to be evaluated 
to determine the impact ofimplementing this standard; however, the effect ofthis standard or its applicability to 
the Town are unknown at this time. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN OF LUTCHERS PROPORTIONATE SHARE 
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITV FOR THE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30. 2022 (*) 

Plan Fiduciaiy Net 
Employers Employers Employers Proportionate Position as a 

Proportion of Proportionate Share ofthe Net Pension Percentage ofthe 
Pension the Net Pension Share ofthe Net Covered Liability as a Percentage Total Pension 

plan Year Liability Pension Liability Payroll of its Covered Payroll Liability 

Municipal Employees Retirement System (Plaii B) 
2021 O.8076% $ 467,829 
2020 O.7701% 697,921 
2019 O.7689% 672,682 
2018 O.7692% 650,632 
2017 O.7650% 661,937 
2016 O.7560% 626,671 
2015 O.6997% 475,515 
2014 O.6330% 297,170 

Municipal Police Employees Retirement System 
2021 O.0154% $ 82,085 
2020 O.0152% 140,234 
2019 O.0147% 133,773 
2018 O.0156% 131,773 
2017 O.0154% 134,527 
2016 O.0113% 106,044 

$ 517,613 
550,215 
587,831 
570,056 
567,857 
555,452 
485,462 
397,823 

90.3820% 
126.8451% 
1 14.4346% 
114.1348% 
1 16.5676% 
112.8218% 
97.9510% 
74.6990% 

79.14% 
66.26% 
66.14% 
65.60% 
63.49% 
63.34% 
68.71% 
76.94% 

$ 46,981 
46,865 
46,000 
46,000 
46,000 
31,692 

174.7196% 
299.2297% 
290.8109% 
286.4630% 
292.3450% 
334.608 1 % 

84.09% 
70.94% 
71.O1% 
71.90% 
70.08% 
66.04% 

Schedule is intended to show informationfor 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as 
they become available. 

(*) Tlic aniounts prcsciitcd havc a nicasurcrncnt datc of Jiiiic 30th for ycar listcd. 

See the accompanying notes to the Required Supplementary Information. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO EACH RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
(DEFINED BENEFIT COST SHARING PLANS ONLY) 

FOR THE VEAR ENDED APRIL 30. 2022 

Contributions in 
Relation to 

Contractually Contractually Contribution 
Pension Required Required Deficiency Covered Contributions as a % of 

Plan: Year Contribution Contribution2 (Excess) payroll3 Covered Payroll 

Municipal Employeest Retireinent System (Pian B) 
2022 $ 85,759 $ 85,759 

2021 78,434 78,434 
2020 81,895 81,895 
2019 81,078 81,078 
2018 73,185 73,185 
2017 60,237 60,237 
2016 50,977 50,977 
2015 43,671 43,671 

M unicipal Police Einployees Retirement Systein 
2022 $ 25,915 $ 25,915 
2021 15,687 15,687 
2020 15,672 15,672 
2019 14,705 14,705 
2018 14,232 14,232 
2017 14,410 14,410 
2016 6,785 6,785 

$ - $ 553,285 15.5000% 

- 513,570 l 5.2723% 
- 584,965 14.0000% 
- 585,011 13.8592% 
- 571,192 12.8127% 
- 561,941 10.7195% 
- 536,600 9.5000% 
- 464,868 9.3943% 

$ - $ 86,099 30.0991% 
- 46,750 33.5551% 
- 48,288 32.4553% 
- 46,000 3 l .9672% 
- 46,000 30.9391% 
- 46,000 31.3261% 
- 23,000 29.5000% 

Schedule is intended to show informationfor lOyears. Additionalyears will be displayed as 
they become available. 

For reference only: 
Employer contribufion rate multiplied by coveredpayroll 

2 Acival employer contributions remitted lo Retirement Systems 
Coveredpayroll amountfor each ofthefiscalyears  ended April 30. 

See the accompanying notes to the Required Supplementary Information. 



TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

NOTES TO REOIJIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2022 

Changes of Benefit Terms inciude: 

Municipal Employees Retirement Svstem (Plan B 
There were no changes ofbenefit terms for the years presented. 

Municioal Police Emoloyees Retirement Svstem 
There were no changes ofbenefit terms for the years presented. 

Changes of Assumptions: 

Municioal Emolovees Retirerncnt Systcin (Plan B) 

The following changes in actuarial assumptions for cach ycar arc as follows: 

1)iscoiiiit Rale: 

Year End Measurement date Rate (hange 

4/30/2022 6/30/2021 6.850% -0. 100% 
4/30/2021 6/30/2020 6.950% -O.050% 
4/30/2020 6/30/2019 7.000% -0.275% 
4/30/2019 6/30/2018 7.275% -O.525% 
4/30/2018 6/30/2017 7.800% O.300% 
4/30/2017 6/30/2016 7.500% 0.000% 
4/30/2016 6/30/2015 7.500% -O.250% 
4/30/20 15 6/30/20 l 4 7.750% 

lfljl(itioil R(ite: 

Year End \teu.ureiìieni daie Rate Change 

4/30/2022 6/30/202 1 2.500% O.000% 

4/30/202 1 6/30/2020 2.500% O.000% 

4/30/2020 6/30/2019 2.500% -O.100% 
4/30/2019 6/30/2018 2.600% -0. 175% 
4/30/2018 6/30/2017 2.775% -O.100% 
4/30/20 17 6/30/20 16 2.875% 0.000% 
4/30/2016 6/30/2015 2.875% -O.125% 
4/30/2015 6/30/2014 3.000% 

Meril: 

Year 1nd Measurerncnt date Ratc (hange 

4/30/2022 6/30/202 1 2.400% 0.000% 
4/30/2021 6/30/2020 2.400% 0.000% 
4/30/2020 6/30/2019 2.400% 0.000% 
4/30/2019 6/30/2018 2.400% 0.275% 
4/30/2018 6/30/2017 2. 125% 0.000% 
4/30/2017 6/30/2016 2.125% 0.000% 
4/30/2016 6/30/2015 2. 125% -0.625% 
4/30/2015 6/30/2014 2.750% 

Salarj Increases: 

Year End Measurement date Rate Change 

4.9%-

 

4/30/2022 6/30/202 l 7.4% 0.000% 
4.9% - 

4/30/202 1 6/30/2020 7.4% 0.000% 
4.9%- -0.1%-

 

4/30/2020 6/30/2019 7.4% 2.4% 
4/30/2019 6/30/2018 5.000% 0.000% 
4/30/2018 6/30/2017 5.000% 0.000% 
4/30/2017 6/30/2016 5.000% 0.000% 
4/30/2016 6/30/2015 5.000% -0.750% 
4/30/2015 6/30/2014 5.750% 
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Year End Measurement date Rate Change 

4/30/2022 6/30/202 1 
4/30/202 1 6/30/2020 
4/30/2020 6/30/2019 
4/30/2019 6/30/2018 
4/30/2018 6/30/2017 
4/30/2017 6/30/2016 

2.500% O.000% 
2.500% O.000% 
2.500% -O.100% 
2.600% -O.100% 
2.700% -0.175% 
2.875% 

TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher. Louìsiana 

NOTES TO REOUIREÐ SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENÐEÐ APRIL 30, 2022 

Changes of Assumptions: (continued) 

Municipal Police Employees Retirement System 

The following changes in actuaria1 assumptions for each year are as follows: 
Ðìscount Rate: Infiation Rate: 

Year End Measurement date Rate Change 

4/30/2022 6/30/2021 6.750% -O.200% 
4/30/2021 6/30/2020 6.950% -O.175% 
4/30/2020 6/30/2019 7.125% -O.075% 
4/30/2019 6/30/2018 7.200% -O. 125% 
4/30/2018 6/30/2017 7.325% -O.175% 
4/30/2017 6/30/2016 7.500% 

Salary Increases including Merit: 

Year End Measurement date Rate Change 
- 

4/30/2022 6/30/2021 9.8% O.000% 
2.2% - O.4% - 

4/30/2021 6/30/2020 9.8% 2.55% 
1.75%-

 

4/30/2020 6/30/2019 7.25% O.1O% 
1.65% - 

4/30/2019 6/30/2018 7.15% O.10% 
1.% - 

4/30/2018 6/30/2017 7.05% O.175% 
1.375% - 

4/30/2017 6/30/2016 6.875% 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
GENERAL FUND 

YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2022 

Final 
üriginal Amended Favorable 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Franchise taxes 
Garbage fees 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmenta1 revenues: 

Beer 
Grants 

Fines 
Other revenue 

Total revenues 

Current: 
General government 
Streets and drainage 
Public safety 
Sanitation 
Capital outlay 

Total expenðitures 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
UNDER EXPENDITURES  

1,000 450 496 46 
54,835 185,944 633,240 447,296 
10,000 1,600 1,671 71 
40,500 92,004 89,664 (2,340) 

1,342,535 1,637,598 2,1 15,342 477,744 

489,350 1,816,100 1,679,937 136,163 
414,100 431,400 423,775 7,625 
279,790 303,300 298,804 4,496 
270,000 270,000 267,996 2,004 
444,950 250,000 198,007 51,993 

1,898, 190 3,070,800 2,868,5 19 202,28 1 

(555,655) (1,433,202) (753,1 77) 275,463 

$ 765,000 $ 865,000 $ 891,688 $ 26,688 
100,000 105,000 110,790 5,790 
245,000 244,300 244,122 (178) 
126,200 143,300 143,671 371 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 400,000 650,000 650,000 - 
Transfers out - - (7,454) (7,454) 

Total other financing sources 400,000 650,000 642,546 (7,454) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (155,655) (783,202) (110,631) 268,009 

FUND BALANCE 
Beginning ofyear 889,184 833,130 833,130 

End ofyear $ 733,529 $ 49,928 $ 722,499 $ 268,009 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

BIJDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES 

GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2022 

Fina1 
Origival Amended 
Budget Budget Actual 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 
Salaries 
Professional fees 
Electricity 
Insurance 
Supplies aud maintenance 
Miscellaneous 
Retirement 
Office expenses 
Payroll taxes 
Per diem 
Dues and subscriptions 
Education and couventious 
Computer 
Hurricane response 
Telephone 

Total geueral government 

STREETS AND DRAINAGE 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Miscellaneous 
Gasoliue, oi1, and diesel 
Street drainage and ditching 
Beautification 
Truck and tractor expense 
Supplies and maintenance 
Electricity 
Insurance 
Retiremcnt 
Uniforms 
Grass cutting - contractor 

Total streets and drainage 

$ 229,650 $ 253,75() S 253,754 $ (4) 
50,000 48,000 46,674 1,326 
15,000 12,150 10,465 1,685 
68,500 62,000 62,202 (202) 

7,500 9,000 7,550 1,450 
7,500 10,500 24,599 (14,099) 

17,500 18,500 17,807 693 
35,200 38,850 24,911 13,939 
15,000 17,000 16,885 115 
15,000 17,000 16,797 203 
2,500 2,500 2,314 186 
6,000 4,000 3,575 425 
8,0()0 10,000 8,589 1,411 

- 1,300,000 1,172,938 127,062 
12,000 13,000 10,877 2,123 

489,350 1,816,250 1,679,937 136,313 

115,100 89,700 86,301 3,399 
8,000 6,500 6,367 133 

61,500 27,500 20,083 7,417 
8,000 9,000 8,415 585 
5,0()() 15,000 14,894 106 
8,000 500 495 5 
6,000 25,00() 17,851 7,149 

35,000 80,00() ¡ 10,037 (30,037) 
65,000 75,OO() 63,792 1 1,208 
38,000 27,0()() 27,535 (535) 
10,000 7,500 7,195 305 
4,500 3,700 3,437 263 

50,000 65,000 57,373 7,627 
414,100 431,400 423,775 7,625 

(continued) 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

BUÐGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES 

GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDEÐ APRIL 30, 2022 

Final 
Original Amended Favorable 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
Salaries 

Gasoline and oil 
Uniforms 
Telephone 
Insurance 
Vehicle expenses 
Supplies and maintenance 
Office supplies 
Payroll taxes 
Printing & publishing 
Retirement 
Miscellaneous 
Computer 
Education and convention 
Dues and subscriptions 

Total public safety 

SANITATION 
Solid waste disposai 

Total sanitation 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 
Capital outlay 

Total capital outlay 

Total all departments 

159,490 165,750 167,228 (1,478) 

5,000 8,000 6,301 1,699 
1,000 3,500 3,770 (270) 
3,000 2,000 1,686 314 

55,000 46,000 45,249 751 
2,500 1,500 819 681 
2,000 3,000 2,790 210 
1,000 2,500 1,987 513 

12,000 14,000 13,182 818 
500 500 284 216 

27,000 37,000 37,631 (631) 
1,000 8,200 7,660 540 
9,000 10,000 8,994 1,006 
1,000 1,000 883 117 

300 350 340 10 
279,790 303,300 298,804 4,496 

270,000 270,000 267,996 2,004 
270,000 270,000 267,996 2,004 

444,950 250,000 198,007 51,993 
444,950 250,000 198,007 51,993 

$ 1,898,190 3,070,950 $ 2,868,519 $ 202,431 

(concluded) 
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OTHER REPORTS REOUIREÐ BY 
GOVERNMENT AUÐITING STANÐARÐS 



P&N 
Posttethwaite & Nettervitte 

215 Saint Patrick St. — Donaldsonville, LA 70346 
225-473-4179 Phone — 225-473-7204 Fax — ricpa.corn 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 

INÐEPENDENT AUIDITORS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
ANÐ ON COMPLIANCE ANÐ OTHER MATTERS BASEÐ ON AN AUIDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMEÐ IN ACCORÐANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUÐITING STANÐARDS 

To thc llonorablc Mayor and Mcrnbcrs 
of thc Board of Aldcrmcn 

Town of Lutchcr, Louisiana 

Wc havc auditcd, in accordancc with thc auditing standards gcncrally acccptcd in thc Unitcd Statcs ofAmcrica and 
thc standards applicablc to financial audits containcd in Government Auditing Standards issucd by thc Comptrollcr 
Gcncral of thc Unitcd Statcs, thc financial statcmcnts of thc govcrnmcntal activitics, thc busincss-typc activitics, 
cach major fund, and thc aggrcgatc rcmaining fund information of thc Town of Lutchcr, Louisiana, (thc Town) as 
of and for thc ycar cndcd April 30, 2022, and thc rclatcd notcs to thc financial statcmcnts, which collcctivcly 
comprisc thc Town s basic fmancial statcmcnts and havc issucd our rcport thcrcon datcd Octobcr 3 1, 2022. 

Report on Interna1 Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of thc fmancial statcmcnts, wc considcrcd thc Towns intcmal control ovcr 
financial rcporting (intcmal control) as a basis for dcsigning audit proccdurcs that arc appropriatc in thc 
circumstanccs for thc purposc of cxprcssing our opinions on thc financial statcmcnts, but not for thc purposc of 
cxprcssing an opinion on thc cffcctivcncss of thc Town s intcmal control. Accordingly, wc do not cxprcss an 
opinion on thc cffcctivcncss of thc Town s intcmal control. 

A deficiency in internai controi cxists whcn thc dcsign or operation of a control docs not allow managcmcnt or 
cmployccs, in thc normal coursc of perfonning thcir assigncd functions, to prcvcnt, or dctcct and corrcct, 
misstatcmcnts on a timcly basis. A materiai weakness is a dcficicncy, or a combination of dcficicncics, in intcmal 
control, such that thcrc is a rcasonablc possibility that a matcnal misstatcmcnt of thc cntitys financial statcmcnts 
will not bc prcvcntcd, or dctcctcd and corrcctcd on a timcly basis. A signijìcant deficiency is a dcficicncy, or a 
combination of dcficicncics, in intcmal control that is lcss scvcrc than a matcrial wcakncss, yct important cnough 
to mcrit attcntion by thosc chargcd with govcmancc. 

Our considcration of intcmal control was for thc limitcd purposc dcscribcd in thc first paragraph of this scction and 
was not dcsigncd to idcntify all dcficicncics in intcmal control that inight bc matcrial wcakncsscs or significant 
dcficicncics. Givcn thcsc limitations, during our audit wc did not idcntify any dcficicncics in intcmal control that 
wc considcr to bc inatcrial wcakncsscs. Howcvcr, matcrial wcakncsscs may cxist that havc not bccn idcntificd. 

Report on Cornpliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining rcasonablc assurancc about whcthcr thc Town s financial statcmcnts arc frcc from matcrial 
misstatcincnt, wc perfonncd tcsts ofits compliancc with ccrtain provisions oflaws, rcgulations, contracts, and grant 
agrccmcnts, noncompliancc with which could havc a dircct and matcrial cffcct on thc financial statcmcnts. 
Howcvcr, providing an opinion on coinpliancc with thosc provisions was not an objcctivc of our audit, and 
accordingly, wc do not cxprcss such an opinion. Thc rcsults of our tcsts discloscd an instancc of noncoinpliancc or 
othcr mattcr that is rcquircd to bc rcportcd undcr Government Auditing Standards and which is dcscribcd in thc 
accompanying schcdulc of findings and rccomincndations as itcin 2022-001. 
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P&N 
posttethwaite & Netterville 

Town of Lutchers Response to Finðing 

Government Auditing Standards requircs the auditor to perfonn limitcd proccdurcs on thc Towns rcsponsc to thc 
finding idcntificd in our audit and dcscribcd in thc accompanying schcdulc of findings and rccommcndations. Thc 
Towns rcsponsc was not subjcctcd to thc othcr auditing proccdurcs applicd in thc audit ofthc financial statcmcnts and, 
accordingly, wc cxprcss no opinion on thc rcsponsc. 

Purpose of this Report 

Thc purposc ofthis rcport is solcly to dcscribc thc scopc ofour tcsting ofintcmal control and compliancc and thc rcsults 
of that tcsting, and not to providc an opinion on thc cffcctivcncss of thc cntity s intcmal control or on compliancc. This 
rcport is an intcgral part of an audit performcd in accordancc with Government Auditing Standards in considcring thc 
cntity s intcmal control and compliancc. Accordingly, this communication is not suitablc for any othcr purposc. 

I ÀÅl 1J j i 

Donaldsonvillc, Louisiana 
Octobcr 3 1, 2022 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher. Louisiana 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2022 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

Financial Statemenîs 
Type ofauditors report issued: 
Interna1 control over fïnancial reporting: 

Material weakness identifled 

• Significant deficiency identifled not considcrcd 
to be a material weakness? 

Noncompliance materia1 to financial statements noted? 

SECTION 11 - FINANCIAL STATEMENT F1NDINGS 

Unmodifled 

Yes x No 

Yes x Nonc rcportcd 

x Yes ______ No 

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

2022-001 BOND REOIJIREMENTS 

Criîeria: The Town must comply with the requirements ofthe outstanding bond issues. 

Condition: The Town failed to make tine1y payment of principal and interest for the two of the bond issues that 
were due in September and one ofthe bond issues that was due in March. 

Cause: The Towns procedures established for the payment of bonds as required are not sufficient to ensure 
compliance with the requirements. 

Effect: The Town may not be in compliance with the provisions as set forth in thc bond agreemcnts. 

Recommendation: The Town should establish procedures to ensure compliance with all provisions as stated in the 
bond agreements. 

View ofResponsible Official: The Town is in the process of strengthening and formalizing policics and proccdurcs 
to ensure compliance with bond regulations. 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher Louisiana 

SUMMARY SCHEÐULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

YEAR ENÐEÐ APRIL 30. 2022 

A. FINÐINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

None. 
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



TOWN OF L1IJTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS AND SALARIES 
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2022 

Mayor: 
Patrick St. Pierrc 

Aldermen: 
Darlene Ri1ey 

Donald Batiste 

Danny Manuel 

Rona1d J. St. Pierre 

Thomas Gcorge 

Chief of Police: 

Dwan Bowser 

36,250 

10,880 

10,920 

10,920 

10,920 

10,880 

48,350 

$ 139,120 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

SCHEÐULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS ANÐ OTHER 
PAYMIENTS TO AGENCY HEAÐ OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

YEAR ENÐEÐ APRIL 30, 2022 

Agency Head Name/Title: Mayor Patrick St. Pierre 

Purpose Amount 

Salary $ 36,250 

Benefits - insurance 18,477 

Benefits - retireinent 5,109 

Benefits — short term disability 49 

Conferences 85 

Special meals 868 

Telephone expense 929 
Mileage 8,999 
Other 350 

Total $ 71,116 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

JUSTICE SYSTEM FUNÐING SCHEÐULE-COLLECTING/DISBURSING ENTITY 
AS REOUIREÐ BY ACT 87 OF 2020 REGULAR LEGISLATIVE SESSION 

CASH BASIS PRESENTATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDEÐ APRIL 30. 2022 

Beginning Balance of Ainounts Collecteð 

A(lð Collections: 
Criniiiìcíl Fiiies - Other 

Subtotal Collections 

Less Amounts Retaine(l by Collecting Agency 
Ainounts Self-Disbursed to Collecting Agency: Criminal Fines - Other 

Subtotal Disbursements/Retainage 

Ending Balance of Amounts Collecteð but Not Ðisburseð  

First Six Second Six 
Month Period Month Perio(1 

En(le(l 10/31/21 Ended 4/30/22 

$ - $ 

282 1,389 
282 1,389 

282 1,389 
1,389 

$ - $ 

- 58 - 



OTHER INFORMATION 



TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

INSURANCE-IN-FORCE 
April 30, 2022 

(Without Audit) 

Expiration Coverage 
Type of Coverae Name of Insurer Date Limits 

Gcneral Liability (business, 
auto, crime, law enforcement 
& public officials) Risk Management, Inc. May 1, 2023 $ 4,000,000 

Boiler & Machinery Equip. Rod Preean & Assoc. May 1, 2023 $ 3,478,761 

Public Officials Bond Rod Prejean & Assoc. January 24, 2023 $ 10,000 

Commercial Property Englade Boudreaux June 12, 2023 $ 3,208,493 

FHA Bond Rod Prejean & Assoc. January 27, 2023 $ 70,000 

Governmcntal Crime Policy Rod Prejean & Assoc. March 23, 2023 $ 10,000 

Vehicle Physical Damage Rod Prejean & Assoc. May 1, 2023 $ 197,627 

Workers Compensation Risk Managcmcnt, Inc. May 1, 2023 $700,000 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher Louisiana 

PUZBLIC UTLLITY SYSTEM OPERATIONS 
APRIL 30 2022 
(Without Audit) 

Statistics on System Operations 

(a) As ofApril 30, 2022 the uumber ofmetered customers was 1,327 aud 1,244 for the water aud sewer systems, 
respectively. There were uo unmetered customers for either the water or sewer systems at April 30, 2022. 

(b) The following rate schedules were in effect during the fiscal year ended April 30, 2022 for water and sewer 
services: 

(1) Water 

The water rates to a11 water suppliers and to all water customers as users ofthe Towu water system are as 
follows: 

Residential Customers 
0 — 2,500 gallons 

Over 2,500 gallons 

Small Commercial Customers 
0 - 5,000 gallons 

Over 5,000 gallons 

$19.68 (base rate) 
$4.24 per 1,000 ga1lons or fraction thereof 

$43.99 (base rate) 
$4.24 per 1 ,0OO gallons or fraction thereof 

Medium Commercial Customers 
0 — 10,0()0 gallons $61 .00 (base rate) 

Over 10,0()0 gallons $4.24 per 1,000 gallons or fraction thereof 

Large Commercial Customers 
0 — 25,000 gallons $77.75 (base  rate) 

Over 25,000 ga1lons $4.24 per 1,000 ga1lons or fraction thereof 
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TOWN OF LUTCHER 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

PUBLIC UTILITY SYSTEM OPERATIONS 
APRIL 30, 2022 
(Without Audit) 

Statistics on System Operations (continued) 

(2) Sewer 

The rates and charges for all customers and users of the sewerage treatment and disposal system of the 
Town are hereby established as follows: 

Residential Customers $ 15.00(flatrate) 

Small Commercial Customers $ 40.00 (flat rate) 

Medium Comuiercial Customers $ 90.00 (flat rate) 

Large Commercial Customers $ 180.00(flatrate) 

(c) Average monthly billìng per customer during the year ended April 30, 2022: 

1. Water $ 36.45 

2. Sewer $ 19.24 
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Town ofLutcher 

St. Janies Parish 

P. O. Box 456 

Lutchei; Louisiana 70071 

Telephol?e. (225) 869-5823 

Fcix.- (225) 869-9628 

 

Mayor 
Patrick P. st. Pierre 

Aldermen 
Donald J. Batiste, Sr. 
Thomas D. George 
Danny B. Manuel 
Darlene F. Riley 
Ronald j. st. Pierre 

Town Clerk 
Vanessa C. Roussel 

Town Attorney 
Wilbur W. Reynaud 

Chief of Police 
Dwan B. Bowser 

October 31, 2022 

Postlethwaite & Netterville, APAC 
P•O. Box 1190 
Donaldsonviile, LA 70346 

The purpose ofthis communication is to respond to issues included in the Ietter 
for the audit period which ended April 30, 2022. 

COMPLL4NCE WJTII LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

2022-001 BOND REQIJIREMENTS 

Crileria: The Town must comply with the requirements ofthe outstanding bond issues. 

Condirzon: The Town failed to make timely payment of principal and interest for the two of the bond issues that 
were due in September and one ofthe bond issues that was due in March. 

Cazise: The Towns procedures established for the payment of bonds as required are not sufficient to ensure 
conip1ianee with the requirements. 

EffQct. The Town may not be in compliance with the provisions as set forth in the bond agreeznents. 

RecoinnendaIion: The Town should establish procedures to ensure cornpliance with all provisions as stated in the 
bond agreements 

Vìew ofResponsib!e Ofiìcial: The Town is in the process of strengthening and fonnalizing policies and procedures 
to ensure cornpliance with bond regulations. 

Equal Opportunity Eniployer 



Page 2 
October 31, 2022 

Corrective Action — Board of Aldermen has approved where bonds will be paid in a 
timely matter. 

lf you have questions regarding this plan, please call Mayor Patrick st. Pierre or 
Vanessa Roussel at (225)869-5823. 

Sincerely, 

Vanessa C. Roussel, LMMC 
Town Clerk 



TOWN OF LUTCHER 

REPORT ON STATEWIDE 

AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2022 

P&N 
postlethwaite & Nettervilte 



TOWN OF LUTCHER 

STATEWLDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Independent Acconntants Report on Applying Agreed-Upon 
Procedures for the Year Ended April 30, 2022 1 — 15 

Managcments Response and Corrective Action Plan 



P&N 
Posttethwaite & NetterviUe 

215 Saint Patrick St. — Donaldsonvifle, LA 70346 
225-473-4179 Phone — 225-473-7204 Fax — pncpa.corn 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDIJRES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 2022 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the Board of Alderman 
Town of Lutcher 
Lutcher, Louisiana 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (CIC) areas identified 
in the Louisiana Legislative Auditors (LLAs) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal 
period May 1, 202 1 through April 30, 2022. The Town of Lutcher s management is responsible for those 
C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

The Town of Lutcher (the Town or the Entity) has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures 
performed are appropriate to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified 
procedures on the C/C areas identified in LLAs SAUPs for the fiscal period May 1, 2021 through April 
30, 2022. Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are 
appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures 
performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of 
all users ofthis report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed 
are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures performed and the results thereofare set forth below. The procedure is stated first, followed 
by the results ofthe procedure presented in italics. Ifthe item being subjected to the procedures is positively 
identified or present, then the results will read no exceptiofl noted or for step 25 we performed the 
procedure and discussed the results with management. If not, then a description of the exception ensues. 

A - Written Policies andProcedures 

1. Obtain and inspect the entitys written policies and procedures and observe whether they address each 
of the following categories and subcategories (if applicable to public funds and the entity s operations): 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

The Entily does not have a written policyfor Budgeting. 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) documentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

The Entily does not have a written poiicyfor Purchasing. 

c) Ðisbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving 

The Enti1y does not have a written policyfor Disbursements. 
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P&N 
Post1ethwaite & Netterville 

d) Receipts, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and procedures 
should include managernent s actions to determine the cornpleteness of all collections for each type 
ofrevenue or agency fund additions (e.g. periodic confirrnation with outside parties, reconciliation 
to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency 
fund forfeiture monies confirrnation). 

The Entily does not have a written poiicyfor Receipts. 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtirne worked, and (3) approval process for ernployee9s) 
rate ofpay or approval and rnaintenance ofpay rate schedules. 

The Entily does not have a written policyfor Payroii/Personnei. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terrns and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) rnonitoring process. 

The Enti1y does not have a written poiicyfor Contracts. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, jfapplicable), including (1) how cards are to 
be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) docurnentation requirernents, (4) required approvers 
of staternents, and (5) rnonitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of fuel card 
purchases) 

The Enti1y does not have a written poiicyfor its credit cards andfuei cards. 

h) Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
category of expense, (3) docurnentation requirernents, and (4) required approvers 

The Enti1y does not have a written policyfor Travei and Expense Reimbursements. 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-1121, (2) 
actions to be taken ifan ethics violation takes place, (3) systern to rnonitor possible ethics violations, 
and (4) requirernent that all ernployees, including elected officials, annually attest through signature 
verification that they have read the entity s ethics policy. 

The Enti1y does not have a written poiicyfor Ethics. 

j) Ðebt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting 
requirernents, (3) debt reserve requirernents, and (4) debt service requirernents. 

The Enti1y does not have a written poiicyfor Debt Service. 
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k) Information Technology Ðisaster Recoverv/Business Continuity, including (1) identification of 
critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location 
isolated from the network, (3) periodic testingiverification that backups can be restored, (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and software 
patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover 
operations after a critical event. 

The Entily does not have a written poiicyfor Information Technoiogy. 

1) Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency responsibilities and 
prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

The Entily sexuai harassmentpolicy does not address (2) annual empioyee training or (3) annuai 
reporting. 

B - Board or Finance Committee 

2. Obtain and inspect the boardlfinance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the boards 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

a) Observe that the boardlfinance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency 
in accordance with the boards enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent document. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the minutes 
referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund and major special 
revenue funds, as well as monthly financial statements (or budget-to-actual comparisons, if 
budgeted) for major proprietary funds. Aiternateiy, for those entities reporting on the non-profit 
accounting model, observe that the minutes referenced or includedfinancial activi1y relating to 
pubiicfiinds fthose pubiicfunds comprised more than 1O% ofthe enti1y coiiections during the 
fiscaiperiod. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned fund 
balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned fund balance in 
the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period 
referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund balance in the 
general fund. 

No exceptions noted. 
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C - Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management s 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entitys main operating 
account. Select the entitys main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all 
accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for selected each account, and observe that: 

A listing ofbank accounts was provided and included a total of 12 bank accounts. Management 
identijìed the entily main operating account. No exceptions were noted as a result ofperforming 
this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we selected 5 bank accounts (3 main operating and 2others) and 
obtained the bank reconciliationsfor one monthfor each. Each bank reconciliation was obtained 
and subjected to the belowprocedures. 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of managementlboard member who does not 
handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., initialed and 
dated, electronically logged); and 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

No exceptions noted. 

Ð - Collections 

4. Obtain a listing ofdeposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cashlchecks/money orders (cash) 
are prepared and managements representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit 
sites (or all deposit sites ifless than 5). 

A listing ofdeposit sites were provided. No exceptions noted. 

From the listingprovided, only 1 location was identijìed. Therefore, this location was selected and the 
followingprocedures were performed. 
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For cach dcposit sitc scicctcd, obtain a listing of collcction locations and managcmcnts rcprcscntation 
that thc listing is complctc. Randomly scicct onc collcction location for cach dcposit sitc (i.c. 5 
collcction locations for 5 dcposit sitcs), obtain and inspcct writtcn policics and proccdurcs rclating to 
cmploycc job dutics (if no writtcn policics or proccdurcs, inquirc of cmployccs about thcir job dutics) 
at cach collcction location, and obscrvc that job dutics arc properly scgrcgatcd at cach collcction 
location such that: 

A listing of collection locations for each deposit site selected in procedure #4 was provided and 
included a total of 1 collection location. No exceptions were noted as a result ofpeiforming this 
procedure. 

Inquiry with employee(s) regardingjob duties wasperformed in order topeiform theprocedures below. 

a) Employccs rcsponsiblc for cash collcctions do not sharc cash drawcrs/rcgistcrs. 

Employees responsiblefor cash collections share cash drawers/registers on rare occasions. 

b) Each cmploycc rcsponsiblc for collccting cash is not rcsponsiblc for prcparing/making bank 
dcposits, unlcss anothcr cmploycc/official is rcsponsiblc for rcconciling collcction documcntation 
(c.g. prc-numbcrcd rcccipts) to thc dcposit. 

The employees responsiblefor collecting cash are responsibleforpreparing/making bank deposits. 

c) Each cmploycc rcsponsiblc for collccting cash is not rcsponsiblc for posting collcction cntrics to 
thc gcncral lcdgcr or subsidiary lcdgcrs, unlcss anothcr cmploycc/official is rcsponsiblc for 
rcconciling lcdgcr postings to cach othcr and to thc dcposit. 

2 out of3 employees responsiblefor collecting cash are responsibleforposting collection entries 
to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers. 1 of these 2 employees is responsiblefor reconciling 
ledgerpostings to the deposit. 

d) Thc cmploycc(s) rcsponsiblc for rcconciling cash collcctions to thc gcncral lcdgcr and/or subsidiary 
lcdgcrs, by rcvcnuc sourcc and/or agcncy fund additions arc not rcsponsiblc for collccting cash, 
unlcss anothcr cmploycc vcrifics thc rcconciliation. 

On rare occasions, the employee responsiblefor reconciling cash collections to the general ledger 
and/or subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions is responsible for 
collecting cash. 

6. Obtain from managcmcnt a copy of thc bond or insurancc policy for thcft covcring all cmployccs who 
havc acccss to cash. Obscrvc thc bond or insurancc policy for thcft was cnforccd during thc fiscal 
period. 

No exceptions noted. 
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7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 under 
Bank Reconciliations above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made 

on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit ifmultiple deposits are made on the same 
day). Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other than bank statements when 
selecting the deposit datesfor testing, such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book, 
etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

We randomly selected lwo deposit datesfor each ofthe 5 bank accounts selected in procedure #3. We 
obtained supporting documentationfor each ofthe 10 deposits andperformed theprocedures below. 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Observe the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location (within 
one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit is less 
than $100). 

Ofthe 10 deposits tested, 3 deposits were not made within one day ofreceipt. 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

No exceptions noted. 

E - Non-payroll Ðisbursements (excluding cardpurchases/payments, lravel reiinburseinenls, and pelty 
cash purchases) 

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and managements 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

The listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period was provided. No exceptions were 
noted as a result ofperforming this procedure. 

From the listingprovided, only 1 location was identified. Therefore, this location was selected, and the 
followingprocedures were performed. 
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9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with non-
payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee 
job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees about their job 
duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

The listing ofemployees involved with non-payrollpurchasing andpaymentfunctionsfor eachpayment 
processing location selected in procedure #8 was provided. No exceptions were noted as a result of 
performing this procedure. 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and 
placing an order/making the purchase. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor 
files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

No exceptions noted. 

10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entitys non-payroll disbursement transaction 
population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain managements representation that 
the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, obtain supporting 
documentation for each transaction and: 

A listing ofnon-payroll disbursementsfor each paymentprocessing location selected in procedures #8 
was provided related to the reporting period. No exceptions were noted as a result ofpeiforming this 
procedure. 

From each of the listings provided, we randomly selected 5 disbursements and peiformed the 
procedures below. 

a) Observe whether the disbursement matched the related original itemized invoice, and that 
supporting documentation indicates deliverables included on the invoice were received by the 
entity. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

No exceptions noted. 
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F - Credit Cards/Ðebit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

1 1. Obtain from managcment a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards 
(cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained 
possession of the cards. Obtain managements representation that the listing is complete. 

A listing ofcards was provided. No exceptions were noted as a resuit ofperforming this procedure. 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards ifless than 5) that were 
used during the fiscal period. Randornly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each 
card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, 
and: 

From the iistingprovided, we selected aii (5) cards (2 credit cards and 3fue1 cards) used in thefiscai 
period. We randomiy seiected one monthiy statementfor each of the 5 cards seiected and performed 
theprocedures noted beiow. 

a) Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports 
for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the 
authorized card holder 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

No exceptions noted. 

13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding fuel cards, 
randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and obtain 
supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e., each card should have 10 transactions subject to 
testing). For each transaction, observe it is supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that identifies 
precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) 
documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). For missing receipts, 
the practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and note whether management had a 
compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a missing receipt statement that is subject 
to increased scrutiny. 

We randomiy seiected ali transactions for 2 of the 5 cards seiected in procedure #12 (3 fuei cards 
exciuded) and performed the specijìed procedures. There were no exceptions noted as a resuit of 
performing this procedure. 

: 
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G - Travel and Travel-RelatedExpense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

14. Obtain from managemcnt a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and management s representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly 
select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of 
the 5 reimbursements selected: 

The iisting oftravel and travei-related expense reimbursements was providedfor thefiscal period. No 
exceptions were noted as a resuit ofperforming this procedure. 

From the iisting provided, we randomlÿ selected 5 reimbursements and peiformed the procedures 
below. 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe the approved reimbursement rate is no more than those 
rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration 
(www.gsa.gov). 

No exceptions noted. 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe the reimbursement is supported by an original itemized 
receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Observe each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose (for 
meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names ofthose individuals participating) 
and other documentation required by written policy (procedure #lh). 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Observe each reimbursement was reviewed and approvcd, in writing, by sorncone other than the 
person receiving reimbursement. 

No exceptions noted. 

H - Contracts 

15. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and 
supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or rencwed during the fiscal period. 
Aiternateiÿ, the practitioner maÿ use an equivaient seiection source, such as an active vendor iist. 
Obtain managements represcntation that thc listing is complctc. Randornly scicct 5 contracts (or all 
contracts if less than 5) from the listing, cxcluding thc practitioncr s contract, and: 

We obtainedfrom management a iisting ofall agreements/contracts. No exceptions were noted as a 
resuit ofperforming this procedure. 
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From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 contracts and performed the procedures below. 

a) Obscrvc whcthcr thc contract was bid in accordancc with thc Louisiana Public Bid Law (c.g., 
solicitcd quotcs or bids, advcrtiscd), if rcquircd by law. 

Each ofthe 5 contracts selectedfor ourprocedures wereforprofessional services, therefore none 
were subject to Louisiana Public Bid Law and was not compliant. 

b) Obscrvc whcthcr thc contract was approvcd by thc govcming bodylboard, if rcquired by policy or 
law (c.g. Lawrason Act, Homc Rulc Chartcr). 

No exceptions noted. 

c) If thc contract was amcndcd (c.g., changc ordcr), obscrvc thc original contract tcrms providcd for 
such an amcndmcnt and that amcndmcnts wcrc madc in compliancc with thc contract tcrms (c.g., 
if approval is rcquircd for any amcndmcnt, was approval documcntcd). 

None ofthe 5 contracts selected were amended. Therefore, this procedure is not applicable. 

d) Randomly scicct onc paymcnt from thc fiscal period for cach of thc 5 contracts, obtain thc 
supporting invoicc, agrcc thc invoicc to thc contract tcrms, and obscrvc thc invoicc and rclatcd 
paymcnt agrccd to thc tcrms and conditions of thc contract. 

No exceptions noted. 

I - Payroll and Personnel 

16. Obtain a listing of cmployccs and officials cmploycd during thc fiscal period and managcmcnts 
rcprcscntation that thc listing is complctc. Randomly scicct 5 cmployccs or officials, obtain rclatcd 
paid salarics and personncl filcs, and agrcc paid salarics to authorizcd salarics/pay ratcs in thc personncl 
filcs. 

A listing ofemployees and officials employed during thefiscal year was provided. No exceptions were 
noted as a result ofperforming this procedure. 

From the listingprovided, we randomly selected 5 employees andpeiformed the specijìedprocedures. 
No exceptions noted. 

17. Randomly scicct onc pay period during thc fiscal period. For thc 5 cmployccs/officials scicctcd undcr 
#16 abovc, obtain attcndancc rccords and lcavc documcntation for thc pay period, and: 

We randomly selected 1 pay period during the fiscal period and performed the procedures belowfor 
the 5 employees selected in procedure #16. 
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a) Obscrvc all selectcd cmployccs or officials documcntcd thcir daily attcndancc and lcavc (c.g., 
vacation, sick, compcnsatory). (Notc: Gcncrally, an cicctcd official is not cligiblc to cam lcavc and 
docs not documcnt hislhcr attcndancc and lcavc. Howcvcr, if thc cicctcd official is caming lcavc 
according to policy and/or contract, thc official should documcnt hislhcr daily attcndancc and 
lcavc.) 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Obscrvc whcthcr supervisors approved the attcndancc and lcavc of the selected employees or 
officials. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Obscrvc whcthcr any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entitys 
cumulativc lcavc rccords. 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Obscrve whether ratc paid to thc cmployccs or officials agree to the authorized salary/pay rate 
found within thc personncl filc 

No exceptions noted. 

18. Obtain a listing of thosc cmployccs or officials that rcccivcd tcrmination payments during thc fiscal 
period and managemcnts rcpresentation that the list is completc. Randomly selcct two employees or 
officials, obtain related documentation of thc hours and pay ratcs uscd in management s termination 
payment calculations and thc cntity s policy on termination paymcnts. Agrce thc hours to thc cmployce 
or officials cumulative leavc rccords, agrce thc pay ratcs to thc cmployee or officials authorizcd pay 
rates in thc cmployee or officials personnel filcs, and agree the tcrmination payment to entity policy. 

A listing of employees or officials receiving termination payments during the fiscal period was 
provided. No exceptions were noted as a result ofperforming this procedure. 

There was only one employee that received termination payments. No exceptions noted as a result of 
performing this procedure. 

19. Obtain management s rcprcscntation that cmployer and employcc portions of payroll taxcs, rctirement 
contributions, hcalth insurancc prcmiums, and workcrs compcnsation premiums havc becn paid, and 
associated forms havc bccn filcd, by requircd dcadlincs. 

No exceptions noted. 
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J- Ethics 

20. Using thc 5 randomly sclected employees/officials from procedure # 16 under Payroll and Personnel 
abovc obtain cthics documcntation from managernent, and: 

a) Obscrvc whcthcr thc documcntation dcmonstratcs cach cmploycc/official complctcd onc hour of 
cthics training during thc fiscal period. 

Ofthe 5 empioyees selected, 1 was hired in February 2022 and therefbre had not coinpleted one 
hour ofethics training during thefiscai period covered by these procedures. 

b) Obscrvc whcthcr thc cntity maintains documcntation which dcmonstratcs cach cmploycc and 
official wcrc notificd of any changcs to thc cntity s cthics policy during thc fiscal period, as 
applicablc. 

The Town does not have aformai ethicspolicy. 

K - Ðebt Service 

2 1. Obtain a listing of bonds/notcs issucd during thc fiscal period and managcmcnt s rcprcscntation that 
thc listing is complctc. Scicct all bonds/notcs on thc listing, obtain supporting documcntation, and 
obscrvc Statc Bond Commission approval was obtaincd for cach bond/notc issucd. 

No bonds were issued during the currentfiscalyear. This step is not applicabie. 

22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notcs outstanding at thc cnd of thc fiscal period and rnanagcmcnts 
rcprcscntation that thc listing is complctc. Randomly scicct onc bond/notc, inspcct dcbt covcnants, 
obtain supporting documcntation for thc rcscrvc balancc and paymcnts, and agrcc actual rcscrvc 
balanccs and paymcnts to thosc rcquircd by dcbt covcnants. 

A listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscai period was provided. From the iisting 
provided, we randomiy seiected 1 bond/note and performed the specijìed procedures. One payment 
during the year was not made timely. 

L — Fraud Notice 

23. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and asscts during thc fiscal period and 
managcmcnts rcprcscntation that thc listing is complctc. Scicct all misappropriations on thc listing, 
obtain supporting documcntation, and obscrvc that thc cntity rcportcd thc misappropriation(s) to thc 
lcgislativc auditor and thc district attomcy of thc parish in which thc cntity is domicilcd. 

No exceptions noted. 

24. Obscrvc thc cntity has postcd on its prcmiscs and wcbsitc, thc noticc rcquircd by R.S. 24:523.1 
conccming thc rcporting ofmisappropriation, fraud, wastc, or abusc ofpublic funds. 
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The Town does not have a website, but the notice wasposted on the iobby buiietin board. No exceptions 
noted. 

M — Information Technology 

25. Perfonn the following procedures, (verbally discuss the results with management, and report We 
performed the procedure and discussed the results with management.) 

a) Obtain and inspect the entitys most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical data 
(ifno written documentation, inquire ofpersonnel responsible for backing up critical data) and 
observe that such backup occurred within the past week. If backups are stored on a physical 
medium (e.g., tapes, CDs), observe evidence that backups are encrypted before being 
transported. 

We performed the procedures and discussed the results with management. 

b) Obtain and inspect the entity s most recent documentation that it has tested/verified that its 
backups can be restored (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for 
testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the test/verification was 
successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

Weperformed theprocedures and discussed the results with management. 

c) Obtain a listing of the entitys computers currently in use and their related locations, and 
management s representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers and 
observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current and active 
antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system software in use are 
currently supported by the vendor. 

Weperformed theprocedures and discussed the results with management. 

N — Sexual Harassment 

26. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under Payroll and Personnel 
above, obtain sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observe the 
documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour of sexual harassment 
training during the calendar year. 

Ofthe 5 empioyees seiected, 1 was hired in February 2022 and therefore had not completed one hour 
ofsexuai harassment training during thefiscaiperiod covered by these procedures. 

27. Observe the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its website (or 
in a conspicuous location on the entitys premises ifthe entity does not have a website). 

The Town ofLutcher does not have a website; Therefore, the policy was not listed on a website. The 
poiicy was aiso not posted anywhere in the office, but it was asserted that each empioyee is handed a 
copy afier they compiete the one-hour course. 

- 13 - 



P&N 
Post1ethwaite & Netterville 

28. Obtain thc cntity s annual scxual harassmcnt rcport for thc currcnt fiscal period, obscrvc that thc rcport 
was datcd on or bcforc Fcbruary 1, and obscrvc it includcs thc applicablc rcquircmcnts of R. S. 42: 344: 

a) Numbcr and perccntagc of public scrvants in thc agcncy who havc complctcd thc training 
rcquircmcnts; 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Numbcr of scxual harassmcnt complaints rcccivcd by thc agcncy; 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Numbcr of complaints which rcsultcd in a finding that scxual harassmcnt occurrcd; 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Numbcr of complaints in which thc finding of scxual harassmcnt rcsultcd in disciplinc or 
corrcctivc action; and 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Amount oftimc it took to rcsolvc cach complaint. 

No exceptions noted. 

Corrective Action 

29. Obtain managcmcnts rcsponsc and corrcctivc action plan for any cxccptions notcd in thc above agreed-
upon proccdurcs. 

Wc wcrc cngagcd by thc Town to perforrn this agrccd-upon proccdurcs cngagcmcnt and conductcd our 
cngagcmcnt in accordancc with attcstation standards cstablishcd by thc Amcrican Institutc of Ccrtificd 
Public Accountants and applicablc standards of Government Auditing Standards. Wc wcrc not cngagcd to 
and did not conduct an cxamination or rcvicw cngagcmcnt, thc objcctivc of which would bc thc cxprcssion 
of an opinion or conclusion, rcspcctivcly, on thosc C/C arcas idcntificd in thc SAUPs. Accordingly, wc do 
not cxprcss such an opinion or conclusion. Had wc performcd additional proccdurcs, othcr mattcrs might 
havc comc to our attcntion that would havc bccn rcportcd to you. 

Wc arc rcquircd to bc indcpcndcnt of thc Town and to mcct our othcr cthical rcsponsibilitics, in accordancc 
with thc rcicvant cthical rcquircmcnts rclatcd to our agrccd-upon proccdurcs cngagcmcnt. 
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This report is intcnded solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those CIC areas identified in the 
SAUPs, and the result ofthat testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24: 5 13, this report is 
distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Donaldsonville, LA 
Octobcr 3 1, 2022 
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[ Town ofLutcher 

St. James Parish 
P. O. Box 456 

Lutcher, Louisiana 70071 
Telephone: (225) 869-5823 

Fax. (225) 869-9628 

October 31, 2022 

 

Mayor 
Patrick P. st. Pierre 

Aldermen 
Donald J. Batiste, Sr. 
Thomas D. George 
Danny B. Manuel 
Darlene F. Riley 
Ronald J. St. Pierre 

Town Clerk 
Vanessa C. Roussel 

Town Attorney 
Wilbur W. Reynaud 

Chief of Police 
Dwan B. Bowser 

Postlethwaite & Netterville, APAC 
P.O. Box 1190 
Donaldsonville, LA 70346 

The purpose ofthis communication is to respond to issues included in the Statewide 
Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPS) letter for the audit period which ended April 30, 
2022. 

A. Written Policies and Procedures 

Corrective Action — Management will implement and establish procedures to 
ensure the following: 

• Management has begun the process to compile a written policies 
/procedures guide for all business/financial operations. These policies and 
procedures should cover all categories and subcategories. 

D. Collections 5 a-d 

• Management intends to train other employees to fulfill the financial 
reporting functions in the event of their absence. 

D. Collections 7-d 

• Management will make deposits on a daily basis. 2 of the 3 issues related 
to was caused due to Hurricane lda. 

Eqiicil Opportuniiy ßinplover 



Page 2 
October 31, 2022 

J. Ethics 20-a 

The employee is scheduled to take the one-hour ethics course. 

J. Ethics 20-b 

• Management will include a formal ethics policy in the written policies 
/procedures guide that is been written. 

N. Sexual Harassment 27 

• The Tow wiil post the Sexual Harassment Policy in the lobby of the Town 
Hall. 

lf you have questions regarding this plan, please call Mayor Patrick St. Pierre or 
Vanessa Roussel at (225)869-5823. 

Sincerely, 

Vanessa C. Roussel, LMMC 
Town Clerk 
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• Management will make deposits on a daily basis. 2 of the 3 issues related 
to was caused due to Hurricane lda. 

Eqiicil Opportuniiy ßinplover 
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J. Ethics 20-a 

The employee is scheduled to take the one-hour ethics course. 

J. Ethics 20-b 

• Management will include a formal ethics policy in the written policies 
/procedures guide that is been written. 

N. Sexual Harassment 27 

• The Tow wiil post the Sexual Harassment Policy in the lobby of the Town 
Hall. 

lf you have questions regarding this plan, please call Mayor Patrick St. Pierre or 
Vanessa Roussel at (225)869-5823. 

Sincerely, 

Vanessa C. Roussel, LMMC 
Town Clerk 



215 Saint Patrick St. — Donaldsonville, LA 70346 
225-473-4179 Phone — 225-473-7204 Fax — 

, pncpa.corn 

Posttethwaite & NetterviLle 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 

To thc llonorablc Mayor and Mcrnbcrs 
of thc Board of AldcnTncn 

Town of Lutchcr, Louisiana. 

Wc havc auditcd thc financial statcmcnts of thc Town of Lutchcr for thc ycar cndcd April 30, 2022, and havc 
issucd ous rcport thcrcon datcd Octobcr 3 1, 2022. As part ofour audit, wc madc a study and cvaluation ofintcmal 
accounting control to thc cxtcnt wc considcrcd ncccssary to cvaluatc thc systcm as rcquircd by auditing standards 
gcncrally acccptcd in thc Unitcd Statcs of Amcrica. Undcr thcsc standards, thc purposcs of such cvaluation arc 
to cstablish a basis for dcsigning our auditing proccdurcs for thc purposc of cxprcssing our opinion on thc 
financial statcmcnts, but not for thc purposc ofcxprcssing an opinion on thc cffcctivcncss ofthc Towns intcmal 
control. 

Thc objcctivc of intcmal control is to providc rcasonablc, but not absolutc, assusancc as to thc safcguarding of 
asscts against loss from unauthorizcd usc or disposition, and thc rcliability of thc financial rccords for prcparing 
financial statcmcnts and maintaining accountability for asscts. Thc conccpt ofrcasonablc assusancc rccognizcs 
that thc cost ofa systcm ofintcmal accounting control should not cxcccd thc bcncfits dcrivcd and also rccognizcs 
that thc cvaluation of thcsc factors ncccssarily rcquircs cstimatcs and judgmcnts by managcmcnt. 

No mattcr how good a systcm, thcrc arc inhcrcnt limitations that should bc rccognizcd in considcring thc 
potcntial cffcctivcncss of intcmal accounting. In thc perfonTnancc of most control proccduscs, crrors can rcsult 
from misundcrstanding of instructions, mistakcs ofjudgmcnt, carcicssncss, or othcr personal factors. Control 
proccdurcs whosc cffcctivcncss dcpcnds upon scgrcgation of dutics can bc circumvcntcd by collusion. 
Similarly, control proccduscs can bc circumvcntcd intcntionally by managcmcnt cithcr with rcspcct to thc 
cxccution and rccording oftransactions or with rcspcct to thc cstimatcs andjudgmcnts rcquircd in thc prcparation 
of financial statcmcnts. Furthcr, projcction of any cvaluation of intcrnal accounting control to futurc periods is 
subjcct to thc risk that thc dcgrcc of compliancc with thc proccdurcs may dctcrioratc. Wc say this simply to 
suggcst that any systcm nccds to bc constantly rcvicwcd and improvcd whcrc ncccssary. 

Howcvcr, dusing thc coursc of ous audit, wc bccamc awarc of scvcral mattcrs that arc opportunitics for 
strcngthcning intcmal controls or operating cfficicncy. Our commcnts and suggcstions rcgarding thosc mattcrs 
arc sct forth bclow. This lcttcr docs not affcct our rcports datcd Octobcr 3 1, 2022, on thc financial statcmcnts 
of thc Town of Lutchcr or thc Town s intcmal control ovcr financial rcporting. 



P&N 
Postlethwaite & NetterviLle 

ML-2022-OO1 Interna1 Control 

Conðition: Managcmcnt is rcsponsiblc for dcsigning controls that safcguard thc asscts ofthc Town. 
During thc audit, thc following wcrc notcd as improvcmcnt opportunitics: 

• Thc Town docs not havc writtcn policics and proccdurcs surrounding 
thc functions of financial rcporting. Additionally, in thc cvcnt of an 
unplanncd abscncc by thc Town Clcrk, anothcr cmploycc has not bccn 
traincd to fulfill somc of thc functions of financial rcporting. 
Thcrc arc infrcqucnt instanccs whcn onc cmploycc bccomcs 
rcsponsiblc for all dutics surrounding thc cash function. 
Thcrc is no rcvicw of thc prcparcd fixcd assct schcdulc. 

Recornrnendations: Managcmcnt should dcsign and implcmcnt a fonnal proccss and cstablish proccdurcs 
to cnsurc thc following: 

• Wittcn policics and proccdurcs should cncompass all functions of 
financial rcporting. 

• Employccs should bc traincd to fulfill thc fmancial rcporting functions 
of othcr cmployccs in thc cvcnt of thcir abscncc. 

• Additional controls should bc put in placc to cnsurc that onc cmploycc 
is not rcsponsiblc for all dutics surrounding thc cash function. 

• Controls should bc in placc to cnsurc fixcd assct listings arc accuratc. 

This information is intcndcd solcly for thc usc of thc Mayor, Board of Aldcrmcn and managcmcnt of thc Town 
of Lutchcr and should not bc uscd for any othcr purposc. 

Donaldsonvillc, Louisiana 
Octobcr 31, 2022 



P&N 
PostLethwaite & NetterviLLe 

Stattis of Prior Year Managernent Letter Corninents 

MZL-2021-OO1 Interna1 Control 

Conðition: Management is responsible for designing controls that safeguard the assets ofthe Town. 
During the audit, the following were noted as improvement opportunities: 

• The Town does not have written policies and procedures surrounding 
the functions of financial reporting. Additionally, in the event of an 
unplanned absence by the Town Clerk, another employee has not been 
trained to fulfill some of the functions of financial reporting. 

• There are infrequent instances when one employee becomes 
responsible for all duties surrounding the cash function. 

• Vendor additions and vendor maintenance in the accounts payable 
system is not being reviewed. 

. There is no review ofthe prepared fixed asset schedule. 

Current Stattis: A similar issue is reported as ML-2022-OO1. 



 

Town ofLutcher 

St. Jatnes Parish 
P. O. Box 456 

Lutcher, Louisia,ia 70071 
Telephone. (225) 869-5823 

Fax: (225) 869-9628 

 

Mayor 
Patrick P. St. Pierre 

Aldermen 
Donald J. Batiste, Sr. 
Thomas D. George 
Danny B. Manuel 
Darlene F. Riley 
Ronald J. St. Pierre 

Town Clerk 
Vanessa C. Roussei 

Town Attorney 
Wiibur W. Reynaud 

Chief of Police 
Dwan B. Bowser 

October 31, 2022 

Postlethwaite & Netterville, APAC 
P.o. Box 1190 
Donaldsonville, LA 70346 

The purpose of this communication is to respond to issues included in the 
management letter for the audit period which ended April 30, 2022 

ML 2022-001 lnternal Controls 

Corrective Action — Management will implement and establish procedures to 
ensure the following: 

• Management will begin to compile a written policy/procedure guide for all 
business/financial operations 

• Management intends to train other employees to fulfill the financial 
reporting functions in the event of their absence. 

• Management will implement additional controls to ensure that one 
employee is not responsible for all duties surrounding the cash function. 
Additional controls will be put into place to ensure fixed asset listings are 
accurate. 

lfyou have questions regarding this plan, please calt Mayor Patrick St. Pierre or 
Vanessa Roussel at (225)869-5823. 

Vanessa C. Roussel, LMMC 
Town Cterk 

EqlI(11 Oppoiluizity Einployer 
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